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FROM THE MINISTER OF WORSHIP AND ADMINISTRATION AND PASTORAL CARE 

 
Thank you for the privilege of being in ministry among you this last year!   A recent article 
published in Vancouver identified First-St. Andrew’s as the only congregation among the 25 
largest churches of the United Church of Canada to be served by a woman as lead pastor.  I am 
not convinced that this is true, as I know women of distinction in ministry in other cities, but 
there are very few, indeed.  So, let us be proud together of this ministry that we share! 
 
This last year I have continued my commitments both inside and outside our walls.  I continue 
to offer leadership for all worship services, to preach at most, and to coordinate the growing 
number of lay people involved in worship leadership.  I delight in my colleagues, Paul Merritt 
and the Rev. Tom Hiscock, who bring their dedication and gifts to this shared work.  I also 
support the Council, Board of Trustees, Worship and MOE committees regularly, while offering 
assistance to the Ministry and Personnel, Finance, and Communications and Marketing 
Committees as able.  I have also begun to offer Adult Education opportunities as time allows, 
starting with three sessions on Mystics, a sermon series on music, another on plays at the 
Grand, an Advent Gathering and a new Book Club.  My regular responsibilities also include 
conducting funerals and weddings, presiding at baptism and communion, and offering pastoral 
care both to members of the congregation and others who look to FSA for help.   As well, I 
provide support for our excellent staff team, and onsite supervision for Debra Low, our Church 
Administrator.  Many thanks to Maureen Scarborough, Geoffrey Bottomley and Lisa Smith, who 
are committed and capable colleagues here. 
 
My involvement in presbytery includes attending the bi-monthly meetings along with our lay 
presbyters.  I attend the Pastoral Oversight Committee meetings as I am able.  George Jolink 
joined me in leading over 90 presbyters in a “Remit Party” to introduce the 3 national remits 
which all pastoral charges were voting on during the year, concerning our doctrine.  I also 
offered a workshop called “If Presbytery Baffles you,” which was gratefully received.  I have not 
been able to be involved in our Conference beyond attending the annual meeting in May. 
 
In the community I have been pleased to represent FSA in various contexts.  I continue on the 
Multi-Faith Social Action Coalition, which draws attention to the growing gap between the rich 
and the poor in our society.   I am part of three informal clergy groups, where friendships are 
formed and communication enhanced.  I also continue to work on the bridges that we are 
intentionally building with the London Muslim Mosque, which will be more evident in 2013. 
 
Lastly, I thank you for the continuing education opportunities and time which I enjoyed this 
year.  I went on a 5-day silent meditation retreat at the Insight Meditation Society in Barre, 
Massachusetts , attended Berwick United Church Camp in Nova Scotia (where I am the Worship 
Superintendent), and enjoyed Ministry in Motion in Burlington, Ontario.  Each of these 
opportunities strengthens my ministry by equipping me in new ways. 
 
At a recent workshop (Welcoming the LGBT Community) I expressed how proud I am of this 
congregation.  Someone came up to me afterwards and said, “we need to hear that from you 
more!”  I can’t think of a better place than here to reiterate it, so that you can see it in print.  
You have been community leaders in so many ways and for such a long time.  I am very proud 
to be serving in this part of the body of Christ! 
 
Rev. Dr. Kate Crawford  
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FROM THE PART TIME SUPPLY MINISTER 

 
Christian Development (CD) and Visitation continue to compete for the 20 hours per week 
designated for this supply position.  In the CD portion of the position I have done Chlidren’s 
Time, Big Circle at the beginning of Sunday School, Confirmation Classes, Advent Candles, 
Christmas Pageant and attended the meetings of the Christian Development Committee.  It has 
been a special thrill to also work with the God Squad on various projects.  In the Visitation 
portion I made 67 formal visits, hand delivered 15 boxes of offering envelopes, performed 8 
funerals and 4 weddings.  The visitation work involved countless contacts with people as they 
came into the building for worship and small group meetings.  As a member of the staff team I 
conducted Sunday Worship when Dr. Crawford was on study leave or holidays as well as 
assisting in worship for special liturgical services throughout the church year. 
 
It has been wonderful to work with the First-St. Andrew’s congregation for the last 18 months 
in this supply position.  The work has stretched me nicely at a time in my life when I was 
tempted to rest on the things I had accomplished.  Blessings on First-St. Andrew’s as they 
anticipate new staff in 2013. 
 
Rev. Tom Hiscock 
 

FROM THE DIRECTOR OF MUSIC 

 
The word “team”, used so commonly today, was associated mainly with sports, formerly, but is 
now used to describe any group of individuals working together for a common purpose or goal.  
Without a doubt we are blessed with a superb musical team here at FSA made up of talented 
and committed people who work tirelessly to provide beautiful and spiritually meaningful music 
for our church.  Here are the groups and leaders of our music team:   
 Tots & Tunes & Teddies Too  Margaret Trethewey, Director 

The Junior Joyfuls:   Joanne Richardson, Director  
      Jean Wuensch, Accompanist 
      Marion Wilson, Accompanist 
 The Joyful Singers:   Enid Merritt, Co-Director 
      Paul Merritt, Co-Director 
      Shelley Kostecki, Choir Helper 
      Grace MacPhail-Wagner, Choir Helper (Spring) 
      Ann MacPhail, Gowns 
      Kes Sebborn, Gowns 
      Wes Sole, Sound Technician 
 Youth Trio    Paul Merritt, Conductor 

The Laudamus Bells:   Barbara Plante, Director 
 Senior Choir Soloists:   Sonja Gustafson, Soprano 
      Terese Sirek Ng, Alto 
      Ross Dodington, Bass 
 First-St. Andrew’s Strings:  Bruce Richardson, Conductor 
 Music Committee:   Paul Cooper, Chair 
 Eberhard Vocal Scholar:  Jordan Baldwin  
 FSA Choral Scholars   Janine Herrmann-McLeod 
      Meaghan Sider 
 Concert Series:   Enid Merritt, Publicity 
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      Friends of Music Donors 
And all the singers and instrumentalists who so generously provide special music 
services, concerts and other events. 

 
Please take a moment in 2013 to thank these individuals for everything they do for us.  We owe 
them so much! 
 

2012 was very challenging for me after breaking my wrist in late January.  Although mostly 
healed now, my wrist will never be 100% again but what has been 100% is the help, support 
and kindness I received after my accident.  I am grateful especially to Nancy Jackson and Lynda 
Kennedy who so ably performed keyboard duties during the months I was unable to play. 
 
Every year is filled with memorable moments.  Here are just a few from 2012: 
1) The choir’s series of Baroque concerts introducing audiences to lessor known gems and 

established classics from this period. 
 

2) The Joyful Singers presentation of the musical “The Troubbable of Zerubbabel” on April 
29. 

 

3) The addition of two Choral Scholars to our choir:  Janine Herrmann-McLeod and 
Meaghan Sider. 

4) The electric keyboard purchased with assistance from the Jean Brown Fund. 
 

5) The singing and playing of four of our people who continually delight us with their music 
in service and concert. 

 

6) The new musical group for our youngest members, Tots & Teddies & Too, founded and 
directed by Margaret Trethewey and the wonderful ‘Sing For Your Supper’ preceding the 
children’s choirs organized by Allyson Watson. 

 

In December we celebrated the tenure of our Alto Soloist, Terese Sirek Ng, as she retired from 
this position.  We will miss hearing Terese’s beautiful voice regularly but she has assured us she 
will be happy to sing at FSA from time to time. 
 

The harmony observed in and made by our musical team is inspiring to see and hear.  May this 
unified voice of praise and joy continue to enrich and bless us and our community in 2013. 
 
Paul Merritt, Director of Music 
 

FROM THE CHAIR OF COUNCIL 

 
As I write this report, I find myself reflecting both on this past year and on my tenure as 
Council Chair which is coming to an end.  Your Council is an extraordinary group of dedicated 
volunteers who give their time and talents to serve the work of God through First-St. Andrew’s 
United Church.  I feel blessed to have been able to offer leadership through these past 2 years.   
 
Each of your committees of council has worked tirelessly in their own jurisdictions to take care 
of First-St. Andrew’s in order to ensure that each of us benefits from all that is offered. Finance 
and Stewardship continue to work hand in hand to ensure that we remain viable and healthy. 
As always MOE continues to assist us in reaching out to the broader community both in London 
and beyond.  Worship works to provide excellent support and leadership in the development of 
our worship services and Christian Development works to ensure that there is programming for 
all age groups in our congregation.  These are but a few examples of the leadership provided at 



6. - 6 - 

the committee level on your behalf.  I have included the names of all Committee chairs at the 
end of this report. Please thank them when you get a chance.  
 
In addition to the regular work of each committee, council has undertaken two new initiatives 
which help to guide our discussions and plan for the future.  Firstly, council participated in a 
visioning workshop in April to look more closely at what is important to us and how we move 
forward in the future.  This workshop was followed in October by an “All Committee” meeting to 
examine some of the ideas that came from the April retreat.  We continue to look at how we 
can build on this work to shape the future of FSA.  Secondly, Council has been involved in a 
book study around the work of Diana Butler Bass in order to explore our own thoughts on the 
theme of becoming a more welcoming church.  At the same time a small group of interested 
individuals with the support of Council developed and presented a workshop in January 2013 on 
welcoming members of the LGBTQ community. We hope this will be the first of a series of 
workshops aimed at welcoming different groups within our community at FSA and in London.      
 
On behalf of the congregation I wish to express sincere thanks to all members of council for the 
work they do. In particular I wish to thank those committee members who are stepping down 
or moving on for your gifts.  First-St. Andrews relies heavily on its volunteers and you have 
played a significant role in the life of our church.     
 
On behalf of Council and the congregation I also wish to acknowledge our staff for the 
outstanding work they do each day.  Kate, Tom, Paul, Debra, Maureen, Geoff and Lisa we value 
your efforts and we thank you.   
 
In closing let me say that it has been my great pleasure to serve as your council chair over the 
past 2 years.  Thank you for your ongoing support.  
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
George Jolink, Chair 
 

Members of Council: 
Katherine Wonfor – Secretary      
Jackie Williams – Nominating 
Harold Jackson – Finance 
Jane Glaves – Membership and Nurture 
Donna Travis – Volunteer Coordinator 
Jeannette Morgan, Jane Hill - Ministry and Personnel 
Janice Elliott – Mission Outreach and Environment 
Paul Cooper – Music 
Mary Ann Hodge – Property 
Judith Walker - Stewardship  
John Eberhard, David Manness – Trustees 
Jo Ann Silcox – Worship 
Doug Gonder – Ad Hoc Marketing and Communitcations 
Bill & Jean Knowles, Linda Badke – Presbytery Representatives 
Laurel Kenney – UCW 
Kate Crawford, Tom Hiscock – Ministers 
Paul Merrit – Director of Music 
Debra Low – Church Administrator 
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FROM THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES CHAIR 

 

Your Board of Trustees met officially on January 9th, April 23rd, June 11th, September 17th and 
November 12th of 2012. A number of committee meetings and other meetings of the co-chairs 
took place during the year. 
 
Trustees include:  John Eberhard (Co-Chair and interim Chair of Long-Term Giving and 
Insurance), David Manness (Co-Chair and Investment Committee Chair), Russ Gonder, June 
McKay (Memorials Committee Co-Chair), Russ Monteith, Bill Peel, Robin Procunier, Bob Schram, 
Bob Slater (Memorials Committee Co-Chair), Katherine Wonfor (Secretary) Kate Crawford 
(Minister of Worship and Administration). Also attending Trustee meetings during 2012, on 
invitation, have been: Harold Jackson (Chair of Finance), representatives from the Property 
Committee and Russ Scorgie.  
 
The Board of Trustees holds and administers all property owned by the Church for the benefit 
and use of the First-St. Andrew's United Church Congregation as part of The United Church of 
Canada under the provisions of the Trusts of Model Deed of the United Church Manual. The 
Board holds the freehold title to the lands upon which the church sits. 
 
The Board of Trustees has four committees accountable to it. At least one member of the Board 
serves on each committee. The committees are as follows: 

a) Investment 
b) Insurance 
c) Long-term Giving 
d) Memorials  

The Board of Trustees began 2012 with total assets under management evaluated at 
$1,940,140. The total assets as of the end of the year were $2,160,287. 
As of December 31, 2012 the net assets (assets less liabilities) consisted of the capital fund 
($ 1,392,247) and restricted funds ($ 674,068). The total net assets as of the year end were 
$ 2,066,315. The restricted funds are made up of the Wilson Music Fund, Clark Fund, the 
Eberhard Music Scholarship Fund and the Wm. & J. Brown Fund. A transfer of $14,666.86 was 
made to support youth related expenses from the Brown Trust in 2012. 
 
For 2012, the Board challenged the congregation to contribute to the capital building fund with 
a commitment to match the contributions. The Trustees transferred $42,078.56 in response to 
the generous capital contributions from members. These funds are used by the Property 
Committee to undertake projects recommended in the “AVIS Report” on capital renovations. 
In 2012, at the direction of the Congregation and Council, your Board of Trustees transferred 
$30,000.00 from the capital fund to the operating fund of Council. From this amount, the 
insurance premium (including taxes) of $16,412 was paid.  
 
At December 31st, 2012 the net assets of the capital fund is valued at $ 1,392,247.  The capital 
fund is the benchmark used for the "cap formula" (CAP = two times our annual operational 
expenses) which represents the amount of money our Congregation agreed should be sustained 
at all times in the Capital Fund. 
 
With a “CAP” of $1,227,476 for 2012, this left the Trust Accounts "over cap” by $ 164,771. This 
is a great improvement from being over cap as of December 2011 (then by only $ 600) mainly 
thanks to receipts of bequests received in 2012 (as shown below) and thanks to the return on 
investment from our balanced investment portfolio. 
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On behalf of the congregation, the Trustees have gratefully acknowledged bequests that were 
received in 2012. These are vital to the overall financial health of our wonderful church. They 
have been invested and will be put to good use in future in capital building projects. These 
significant bequests have come from the Alvin MacIntosh, Margaret Bowie, Shirley Joyce 
Head estates. The final amount was received from the balance of the Lillian Hodgert estate and 
we have been notified that FSA is a beneficiary in the Jean Gorwill Estate. 
Choosing to leave a legacy “From the Heart” to your church can insure special meaning, worth 
and purpose to a life well lived. Your generosity through your will can ensure your values and 
commitment to FSA continue. This practical addition to a financial or estate plan can be a most 
satisfying accomplishment in a person’s life.  
Your Trustees continue to support the good work of the Finance Committee for adhering to a 
better than “balanced budget” in 2012. There is a delicate balance between earned revenue 
from Trust investments and the demands of trust funds for operational purposes. The Board of 
Trustees cautions Council to ensure that Trust funds are not depleted on operational items so 
as to provide for the long term financial health and sustainability of our assets. 
Your Board of Trustees is pleased with accomplishments of 2012 and will be busy in 2013 
looking after our fiduciary responsibilities. We are pleased to include copies of the trust 
statements (included with the Financial Statements) with this report. 
 
Respectfully submitted by, 
 
John Eberhard and David Manness (Co-Chairs) 
Board of Trustees, First-St. Andrew’s United Church 
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REVIEW ENGAGEMENT REPORT 

 

 

GARY E. MASON 

 CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT 
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PAUL HUSTON, B.A., CGA  TEL: (519)  679-9550 
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REVIEW ENGAGEMENT REPORT 

 

TO THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF FIRST-ST. ANDREW’S UNITED CHURCH 

 

I have reviewed the statement of financial position of the Board of Trustees of First-St. Andrew’s United 

Church as at December 31, 2012 and the statements of operations and changes in fund balances and cash 

flows for the year then ended.  My review was made in accordance with Canadian generally accepted 

standards for review engagements and accordingly consisted primarily of enquiry, analytical procedures 

and discussion related to information supplied to me by management. 

 

A review does not constitute an audit and consequently I do not express an audit opinion on these 

financial statements. 

 

Based on my review, nothing has come to my attention that causes me to believe that these financial 

statements are not, in all material respects, in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting 

principles. 

  

 

 

 

London, Ontario  

February 1, 2013 Licensed Public Accountant 

 

 

 

     BOT 1 

 

mailto:info@hsm.on.ca


 

11 

 

  
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

FIRST-ST. ANDREW’S UNITED CHURCH 

                                                  STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2012 

WITH 2011 COMPARATIVES 

"UNAUDITED" 

 

 

ASSETS 

 

2012    2011  

 

CURRENT ASSETS 

 Cash – Unrestricted Funds $      76,755  $      15,412 

 Cash – Restricted Funds (Note 2) 3,628  5,939 

 HST Receivable        1,254            497  

       81,637       21,848 

    

INVESTMENTS (Notes 2 & 3)  

 Restricted Funds 684,199  640,496 

 Capital Funds 1,394,451  1,277,796 

  2,078,650  1,918,292 

  

TOTAL ASSETS  $ 2,160,287  $ 1,940,140 

 

   

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

 

        

CURRENT LIABILITIES 

 Accrued Liabilities  $        3,000  $        3,000 

 Due to Council (Note 4)      90,972       15,768 

        93,972       18,768 

    

FUND BALANCES (Note 2) 

 Restricted  

  C. Wilson Fund  16,548  15,795  

  Eberhard Memorial Music Scholarship Fund 22,323  -0- 

  Clark Fund  78,359 74,685 

  Wm. & J. Brown Fund - Youth    556,838     544,121 

    674,068  634,601 

 Capital Fund  1,392,247  1,286,771 

    2,066,315  1,921,372 

    

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $ 2,160,287  $ 1,940,140 

 
 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 

     BOT 2



 

12 

 

 

 

 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

FIRST-ST. ANDREW’S UNITED CHURCH 

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND CHANGES IN CAPITAL FUND BALANCE 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 

WITH 2011 COMPARATIVES 

“UNAUDITED” 

 

 

  

   2012    2011    

 

REVENUE (Note 2) 

 Income on Investments $      31,513  $      21,098 

 Amortization of Bond Coupon Interest 21,484  25,231   

 Gain (Loss) on Sale of Investments (4,164)      (2,728) 

 Increase (Decrease) in Value of Investments     14,095      (13,435)

 Bequests Received    123,478      135,000 

       186,406      165,166 

 

EXPENDITURES 

 Professional  3,321  3,375

 Investment Fees  5,353  5,710 

 Bank Charges  177 3  

 Transfer to Council (Note 4)      72,079       40,000  

        80,930       49,088 

 

Surplus from Operations 105,476   116,078 

 

Fund Balance - Beginning of the Year 1,286,771  1,170,693 

 

Fund Balance - End of the Year $ 1,392,247  $ 1,286,771 

 

 

 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

        BOT 3



 

13 

  

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

FIRST-ST. ANDREW’S UNITED CHURCH 

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND CHANGES IN RESTRICTED FUND BALANCES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 

WITH 2011 COMPARATIVES 

"UNAUDITED" 

 

    

  2012    2011    

CLARK FUND 

 Fund Balance - Beginning of the Year $      74,685  $      72,022  

 Income on Investments 3,621  3,601  

 Increase in Value of Investments 53  -0- 

 Transfer to Council Clark Fund (Note 4)            -0-           (938) 

 

 Fund Balance - End of the Year $      78,359   $      74,685 

 

 

WM. & J. BROWN FUND - YOUTH 

 Fund Balance - Beginning of the Year $    544,121   $   545,433 

 Income on Investments 16,286  13,507  

 Amortization of Bond Coupon Interest 5,770  7,086  

 Gain (Loss) on Sale of Investments                                                         (568)          (464)

 Increase (Decrease) in Value of Investments 5,896   (9,607) 

 Transfer to Council (Note 4)     (14,667)     (11,834) 

 

 Fund Balance - End of the Year  $    556,838  $    544,121 

 

 

C. WILSON FUND 

 Fund Balance - Beginning of the Year $      15,795   $            -0-  

 Transfer from Council (Note 4) -0-  15,838  

 Increase (Decrease) in Value of Investments 586   (43) 

 Income on Investments           167             -0- 

 

 Fund Balance - End of the Year  $      16,548  $      15,795  

 

   

EBERHARD MEMORIAL MUSIC SCHOLARSHIP FUND 

 Fund Balance - Beginning of the Year $            -0-   $             -0-  

 Transfer from Council (Note 4) 22,272   -0- 

 Income on Investments            78  -0- 

 Decrease in Value of Investments           (27)              -0- 

 

 Fund Balance - End of the Year  $      22,323  $            -0-  

 

  

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.                         

       BOT 4 
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BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

FIRST-ST. ANDREW’S UNITED CHURCH 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 

WITH 2011 COMPARATIVES 

"UNAUDITED" 
 

  2012    2011    

CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVIES 

 Revenues 

  Capital Fund $    186,406   $    165,166 

  C. Wilson Fund 753   (43)

  Clark Fund 3,674   3,601  

  Wm. & J. Brown Fund - Youth      27,384   10,522 

  Eberhard Memorial Music Scholarship Fund             51              -0- 

      218,268      179,246 

 Expenditures 

  Capital Fund      80,930   49,088 

  Clark Fund -0-   938 

  Wm. & J. Brown Fund - Youth      14,667        11,834 

    95,597        61,860 

 

 Net Surplus from Operating Activities 122,671   117,386 

 

 Non Cash Activities 

  Amortization of Bond Coupon Interest (27,254) (32,317)

  Decrease (Increase) in Value of Investments (20,603) 23,085 

  Accrued Interest on Investments (5,768 ) (5,274)

  Loss on Sale of Investments 4,732   3,192 

 Transfer of Funds from Council (Note 4) 22,272   15,838 

 Increase in HST Receivable (757 ) (343) 

 Increase in Current Liabilities      75,204        15,470 

 

 Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities    170,497      137,037 

 
 

CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

 Proceeds from Sale of Investments 301,323  344,135 

 Purchase of Investments   (412,788 )   (470,039) 

 

 Net Cash From Investments   (111,465 )   (125,904) 

 

CHANGE IN CASH IN THE YEAR 59,032      11,133 

 

CASH – Beginning of the Year      21,351       10,218 

 

CASH – End of the Year  $      80,383  $      21,351 

 

 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 

 BOT 5
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BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

FIRST-ST. ANDREW’S UNITED CHURCH 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2012 

"UNAUDITED" 

 

1. BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

These financial statements report the activities of the investments empowered to the Board of 

Trustees of First-St. Andrew’s United Church.  They do not report the assets or activities related to 

the operations and administration of the Church. 

 

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

 

On January 1, 2012 the church adopted Canadian Accounting Standards for Not-for-Profit 

Organizations (“ASNPO”). These are the first financial statements prepared in accordance with 

ASNPO. The transition date is January 1, 2011 and all comparative information has been presented 

by applying ASNPO. 

 

It was determined that no adjustments to fund balances as at January 1, 2011 or surplus from 

operations for the year ended December 31, 2011 were necessary as a result of the transition to 

ASNPO, as there has been no restatement of any of the comparative information.  

 

The financial statements are presented on a fund basis.  The revenue, expenditures & activities of the 

funds are reported directly within each fund.  The funds are restricted to their intended use as 

described below: 

 

Capital Fund 

To be used for capital expenditures and to operate the general activities of the Board of Trustees. 

 

Restricted Funds 

Clark Fund 

To provide support for continuing education.  

 

Wm & J Brown Fund – Youth 

To support the activities of the Youth of First-St. Andrew’s United Church. 

 

C. Wilson Fund 

To provide support to organ apprentice music programs. 

 

Eberhard Memorial Music Scholarship Fund 

To provide support for vocal music scholarships. 

 

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

Financial Instruments 

The Board of Trustees’ financial instruments consist of Cash, HST Receivable, Investments, 

Accrued Liabilities and Due to Council.  It is the Trustees’ opinion that the Board of Trustees is not 

exposed to significant interest, currency or credit risks arising from these financial instruments.  The 

measurement and carrying value of these financial instruments is market value. 

    BOT 6
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BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

FIRST-ST. ANDREW’S UNITED CHURCH 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2012 

"UNAUDITED" 

 

 

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES   (continued) 
 

Investments 

The Board of Trustees investments are carried at market value.  These investments include amounts 

in Bonds, Notes, Guaranteed Investment Certificates, Equity Stocks, Mutual Funds, Exchange 

Traded Funds and Preferred Stocks. 

 

Revenue Recognition 

Revenue is recognized in the period to which it relates on an accrual basis. 

 

Interest on bond coupons is amortized on a straight line basis over the term of the bond. 

 

Increases (decreases) in the market value of investments are recognized in the year. 

 

Capital Expenditures 

Costs with respect to capital expenditures are expensed in the year incurred.  There were none in 

2012. 

 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of the financial statements that are in accordance with Canadian generally accepted 

accounting principles requires the Board of Trustees to make estimates and assumptions that are 

based on currently available information.  Such estimates and assumptions may affect the reported 

amounts of assets, liabilities and fund balances as at the reporting date, and the reported amounts of 

revenue and expenditures during the fiscal period.  Actual results could differ from the estimates and 

the assumptions used. 

 

 

4. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 

Due to Council represents amounts owing to First-St. Andrew’s United Church from Wm & J. 

Brown Fund Youth ($14,667) and from the Capital Fund ($76,305). 

 

Transfers to Council represent amounts paid or payable to First-St. Andrew’s United Church, 

pursuant to any direction lawfully given by Council and/or the Congregation. 

 

Transfers from Council represent amounts received or receivable from First-St. Andrew’s United 

Church, pursuant to any direction lawfully given by Council and/or the Congregation. 

 

 

 

 

 

        BOT 7 
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CHRISTIAN DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 

 
The Christian Development Committee is responsible for the care and feeding of the development of 
Christianity for three demographics within FSA: Children, Youth and Adults.  The Committee has been 
guided by the ministerial support of Tom Hiscock for the 2012 year.  
 
CD has accomplished many things in 2012.  These include: 

We provide Sunday Church School education for the children and youth. 
We lead adult bible studies, which have grown in numbers. 
We have found a new co-leader for the God Squad, Heather Guthrie. 
We have hosted Sing for your Supper where 25-35 people enjoy dinner before the  
 children’s choirs on Wednesday nights. 
The youth attended Worshiplude in Ottawa. 
The youth provided an excellent service in December. 
We hosted our first Christmas Party for FSA families and families from a community 

 partner which was a huge success. 
We organized the Christmas Pageant for the Christmas Eve Service. 

 
All of these things are not possible without the time and effort of many dedicated volunteers, which we 
greatly appreciate.  We look forward to continuing these, and adding new activities for the 2013 
Welcoming Year! 
 
Submitted by  
Allyson Watson, Chair 
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FINANCE COMMITTEE 
 

“We may not always realize that everything we do 
Affects not only our lives, but touches others too. 

A happy smile can always brighten up the day 
For those who happen to pass by our way. 
For every time we provide a helping hand, 
It shows that person we truly understand, 

When we have a kind and gentle word to give, 
It spreads a beauty to this precious life we live.” 

                     (Author Unknown, amended) 
 

Such inspiration serves to add rewarding fulfillment to our daily lives. Indeed, we are privileged to live in 
a part of this world where this is a relatively natural outcome. In 2012 this faith community recognized 
180 years of promises made and kept. Over time, our church community has weathered and been 
challenged by many socio-economic changes and theological shifts. Nevertheless, theological stimulation 
and a wide variety of outreach programmes remain At the Heart of this vibrant congregation, with an 
ever present challenge to keep growing in many different ways.  

 

The physical space we call First-St. Andrew’s is our church home, our sacred space, our meeting place. 
Here we seek to experience spiritual stimulation, moral guidance and celebrate the many opportunities 
for personal and corporate ministry. This special environment allows us to facilitate a ministry, which is 
reaching out, bringing pastoral care, praying and singing God’s praise. More recently, Sustaining the 
Heartbeat of this active congregation has become thematic. Financial support received from essential 
weekly/monthly gifts and legacy gifts provides for the ever-present operational/capital needs that allow 
this great congregation to fulfill its ongoing vision and mission.  

 

With the financial support received from local church revenue sources and appropriate trust fund 
revenue transfers, the plan to be operationally deficit free in 2012, has been realized. Details of this can 
be found in the Review Engagement Report of our Accountant Gary E. Mason, Chartered 
Accountant, which is contained in the 2012 Annual Report. The resulting modest surplus will be used to 
maintain a healthy operating fund balance to meet the variability of income and expense on a monthly 
basis in 2013. In 2013, completion of staffing additions approved in 2012, and described in the 2011 
JNAC Report, is forecast to deliver efficient and effective growth plans. The budget forecast for 2013 has 
been prepared to clearly identify the sources of revenue necessary to fund these resources, while 
achieving a balanced budget. It is through the support and cooperation of all Committees that has 
allowed such a forecast to be presented. Importantly, this does not happen without support and 
leadership from our paid staff. To them we must pay particular recognition. We are truly blessed by their 
talents and dedication to sustaining our congregation At the Heart.  
 

I am indeed fortunate to have a well-qualified and dedicated Finance Committee. Our members include: 
Michael Bancroft, Kate Crawford (Minister of Worship & Administration), Dennis Dalton, Carol Foley, 
Harold Jackson (Chair), Doug Jones, Debra Low (Church Administrator), Don Reid and Donna Travis. 
Dennis Dalton will be resigning from this committee effective January 2013. His contributions have been 
manifold and his expertise, experience and wise counsel in financial matters will be missed. This has 
been a busy and challenging full year for Debra Low our new Church Administrator. Her accumulated 
training and work expertise has allowed for substantial key additions to financial reporting, analysis and 
management. All committees are receiving enhanced expense/financial activity reports to the level that 
meets their responsibility needs. In addition, opportunities to achieve expense reductions are regularly 
pursued. The Finance Committee wishes to recognize and thank her for the level of due diligence and 
financial management acumen she brings to the position.  
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The foregoing narrative report is respectfully submitted on behalf of the Finance Committee by its Chair. 
 
 
Harold Jackson 
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REVIEW ENGAGEMENT REPORT 

 

 

 GARY E. MASON 

 CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT 
GARY E. MASON, B.A., C.A. 526 OXFORD STREET EAST 

RICK SCARBOROUGH, B.A., B.Ed., CGA LONDON, CANADA  N5Y 3H7 

PAUL HUSTON, B.A., CGA TEL: (519)  679-9550 

 FAX: (519)  679-9552 
                                                                                                                                                                  EMAIL: info@hsm.on.ca 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

REVIEW ENGAGEMENT REPORT 

 

TO THE MEMBERS OF FIRST-ST. ANDREW’S UNITED CHURCH 

 

I have reviewed the statement of financial position of First-St. Andrew’s United Church as at 

December 31, 2012 and the statements of operations and changes in fund balances and cash flows for the year then 

ended.  My review was made in accordance with Canadian generally accepted standards for review engagements 

and accordingly consisted primarily of enquiry, analytical procedures and discussion related to information 

supplied to me by management. 

 

A review does not constitute an audit and consequently I do not express an audit opinion on these financial 

statements.  

  

Note 3 to the financial statements indicates that capital assets, including land and buildings, have been recorded at a 

nominal value of $1 and that the purchase of capital assets are expensed in the year of acquisition.  Canadian 

generally accepted accounting principles require not-for-profit organizations with revenue greater than $500,000 to 

capitalize and amortize capital assets.  The effects of this departure from Canadian generally accepted accounting 

principles on the unaudited financial statements have not been determined.  

 

Except for the policy as described in the preceding paragraph, not to record and amortize capital assets, based on 

my review, nothing has come to my attention that causes me to believe that these financial statements are not, in all 

material respects, in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles. 

 

 

 

 

 

London, Ontario  

February 1, 2013  
 C1.  

 

 
 

 

mailto:info@hsm.on.ca
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FIRST-ST. ANDREW’S UNITED CHURCH 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

 AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2012 

 WITH 2011 COMPARATIVES 

 "UNAUDITED" 

 

 

 ASSETS 

 

 2012  2011   

CURRENT ASSETS 

 Cash  $   29,344  $   28,099 

 Guaranteed Investment Certificates 25,000  25,000 

 Amounts Receivable  11,877  16,347 

 Due from Trust Funds (Note 5) 48,893  15,768   

 Prepaid Expenses      6,838      7,847 

     121,952    93,061 

  

RESTRICTED ASSETS  

 Cash  99,350  105,972 

 Guaranteed Investment Certificates   21,896    43,760 

 Due from Trust Funds (Note 5)    42,079          -0- 

   163,325  149,732 

 

    

CAPITAL ASSETS  (Note 3)            1             1  

   

    

TOTAL ASSETS  $ 285,278  $ 242,794 

    

 

 LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

 

CURRENT LIABILITIES  

 Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities $   32,277  $   27,590 

 Deposits         287         300 

     32,564    27,890 

    

FUND BALANCES  (Note 2)  

 Restricted Funds  

       Music  41,462  65,589 

       Other    121,863    84,143 

   163,325  149,732

 Operating Fund    89,389    65,172 

   252,714  214,904 

 

  

TOTAL LIABILITIES & FUND BALANCES $ 285,278 $ 242,794 

 

 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.   C2. 
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FIRST-ST. ANDREW’S UNITED CHURCH 

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND CHANGES IN OPERATING FUND BALANCE 

 FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 

 WITH 2011 COMPARATIVES 

 "UNAUDITED" 

 

   2012    2011    

REVENUE  (Note 3) 

 Envelope Givings  $ 484,164  $ 502,847 

 Transfers from Trust Funds (Note 5) 44,667  51,834 

 Rental Income - Farquhar House 28,410  27,810 

  - Other  31,300  33,333 

 Designated Income  23,352  38,944 

 Miscellaneous Donations & Income 23,321  36,987 

 Special Projects       3,437    22,554 

    638,651  714,309 

   

EXPENDITURES  

 Staffing - Ministry & Personnel 322,845  343,078 

 Program Services 

  - Christian Development  2,995  3,329 

  - Jean Brown CD Sub-committee 14,667  11,834 

  - Marketing & Communications 4,498  3,904 

  - Membership & Nurture 909  1,259 

  - Music 15,730  15,258 

  - Special Projects 2,211  13,873 

  - Worship 1,512  2,962 

  - Programs / Services Opportunities 400  1,176 

 Outreach - M & S Fund Commitment 87,150  90,512 

  - Mission, Outreach & the Environment 267  1,297 

  - Stewardship & Capital Campaign 331  166  

  - Designated Expense 23,352  38,944 

 Operations - Office & Administration 27,946  27,087 

  - Joint Pastoral Relations 244  5 

  - Presbytery Fees 15,885  14,777 

  - Property Repairs, Maintenance & Security 40,890  43,364 

  - Property Insurance 16,187  15,630 

  - Farquhar House 6,394  9,805 

  - Utilities & Taxes   28,021    28,295 

   612,434  666,555 
 

SURPLUS FROM OPERATIONS 26,217     47,754 

   

FUND BALANCE - Beginning of the Year 65,172  57,418 
 

TRANSFER TO HOSPITALITY MEALS FUND (Note 4) (2,000 ) -0- 

  

TRANSFERS TO CAPITAL RESERVE FUND (Note 4)          -0-   (40,000) 

   

FUND BALANCE - End of the Year $   89,389  $   65,172 

 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.  C3. 
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FIRST-ST. ANDREW’S UNITED CHURCH 

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND CHANGES IN RESTRICTED FUND BALANCES 

 FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 

 WITH 2011 COMPARATIVES 

 "UNAUDITED"  

  

  2012   2011   

RESTRICTED FUNDS - MUSIC  

  

Bray Fund  

 Balance  - Beginning of the Year $    4,720  $   1,389 

 Revenue - Donations 350  4,835 

 Expenditures  - Music & Other   (1,936 )  (1,504 ) 

 Balance - End of the Year $    3,134   $   4,720 

 

Cram/King Fund 

 Balance  - Beginning of the Year $      100  $      121 

 Revenue  - Donations 150  150  

 Expenditures - Music Recognition      (100 )     (171 ) 

 Balance - End of the Year $      150  $      100 

 

Eberhard Memorial Music Scholarship Fund - Principal 

 Balance  - Beginning of the Year $ 41,020  $ 39,025 

 Revenue - Donations   1,870     1,995 

 Transfer to Trust Funds (Note 5) (22,272 )       -0- 

 Balance  - End of the Year $ 20,618  $ 41,020 

 

Eberhard Memorial Music Scholarship Fund - Interest 

 Balance  - Beginning of the Year $      846  $   1,048 

 Revenue  - Interest 1,011  1,023 

 Expenditures - Music Apprentice  (1,000 )  (1,225 ) 

 Balance  - End of the Year $      857  $      846 

 

Inch/Petts Fund 

 Balance  - Beginning of the Year $   2,928  $   2,828 

 Revenue - Donations  223  -0- 

  - Sales   -0-  400 

 Expenditures - Handbells -0-  (300 ) 

  - Music & Other  (1,879 )       -0- 

 Balance  - End of the Year $   1,272  $   2,928  

 

 

 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 

 

 

      C4. 
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FIRST-ST. ANDREW’S UNITED CHURCH 

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND CHANGES IN RESTRICTED FUND BALANCES 

 FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 

 WITH 2011 COMPARATIVES 

 "UNAUDITED" 

 

 

  2012   2011  

MUSIC - CONTINUED 

 

C. Wilson Trust Fund - Interest 

 Balance  - Beginning of the Year $      505  $      581 

 Revenue - Interest -0-  221  

 Expenditures - Music     (200 )      (297 ) 

 Balance  - End of the Year $      305  $      505 

 

C. Wilson Trust Fund - Principal 

 Balance  - Beginning of the Year $   1,059  $ 16,786 

  Revenue  - Donations   60  110 

  Transfer to Trust Funds (Note 5)       -0-  (15,837 ) 

 Balance  - End of the Year $   1,119  $   1,059 

 

 

Friends of Music Fund 

 Balance  - Beginning of the Year $ 13,911  $ 10,566 

 Revenue  - Concert Series Sales 12,335  9,873 

  - Donations 7,710  14,169 

  - Interest -0-  55  

 Expenditures - Concert Series (20,772 ) (20,752 ) 

 Balance - End of the Year $ 13,184  $ 13,911 

  

Wm. & I. McKane Bursary Fund 

 Balance  - Beginning of the Year $      500  $      500 

 Revenue  - Donations 600  600 

 Expenditures - Bursaries -0-  (600 ) 

   - Music     (277 )       -0- 

 Balance - End of the Year $      823  $      500 

 

 

TOTAL - MUSIC FUNDS $ 41,462  $ 65,589 

 

 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 

 

 

    

  C5. 
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FIRST-ST. ANDREW’S UNITED CHURCH 

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND CHANGES IN RESTRICTED FUND BALANCES 

 FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 

 WITH 2011 COMPARATIVES 

 "UNAUDITED" 
 

    2012  2011  

RESTRICTED FUNDS – OTHER  
 

Discretionary Fund 

 Balance  - Beginning of the Year $     2,200  $         -0- 

 Revenue  - Donations 600    2200 

 Expenditures - Furniture        (732 )         -0- 

 Balance  - End of the Year $     2,068  $     2,200 

 

Benevolent Fund 

 Balance - Beginning of the Year $     1,047  $     3,140 

 Revenue - Donations 2,993  2,532 

 Expenditures - Benevolent Gifts    (2,766 )    (4,625 ) 

 Balance - End of the Year $     1,274  $     1,047 

  

Clark Fund - Interest 

 Balance - Beginning of the Year $     9,900  $     9,962 

 Revenue - Interest from Trust Funds (Note 5) -0-  938 

 Expenditures - Continuing Education    (297 )    (1,000 ) 

  - MOE Nicaragua    (2,000 )          -0- 

 Balance - End of the Year $     7,603  $     9,900 

 

Hospitality Meals Fund 

 Balance - Beginning of the Year $     3,175  $     7,504 

 Revenue - Donations 10,286   5,182 

 Expenditures - Meals    (9,050 )    (9,511 ) 

 Transfer from Operating Fund (Note 4)     2,000           -0- 

 Balance - End of the Year $     6,411  $     3,175 

 

Capital Building Fund 

 Balance - Beginning of the Year $   27,365   $   85,085 

 Revenue - Donations 42,079      42,970 

- Interest -0-   357 

 Expenditures - Renovations (28,933 )   (104,426 ) 

 Transfer from Capital Reserve Fund (Note 4)     -0-       3,379 

 Transfer from Trust Funds (Note 5)   42,079            -0- 

 Balance - End of the Year $   82,590   $   27,365 

 

Capital Reserve Fund  (Note 3) 

 Balance - Beginning of the Year  $   40,456   $   18,579 

 Expenditures - Capital Expenditures (18,539 )  (14,744 ) 

 Transfers from Operating Fund (Note 4) -0-      40,000 

 Transfer to Capital Building Fund (Note 4)         -0-      (3,379 ) 

 Balance - End of the Year  $   21,917   $   40,456 

 

TOTAL - OTHER RESTRICTED FUNDS  $ 121,863   $   84,143 

 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.   C6. 
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FIRST-ST. ANDREW’S UNITED CHURCH 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 

WITH 2011 COMPARATIVES 

"UNAUDITED" 

 

   2012 2011    

CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

 REVENUES 

  Operating Fund   $ 593,984  $ 662,475 

  Music Funds   24,309  33,431 

  Other Restricted Funds    55,958     54,179 

     674,251  750,085 

 

 EXPENDITURES 

  Operating Fund   612,434  666,555 

  Music Funds   26,164  24,849 

  Other Restricted Funds    62,317  134,306 

     700,915  825,710 

 

 Net Surplus (Deficit) from Activities (26,664 ) (75,625) 

 

 Transfer to Trust Funds (Note 5) (22,272 ) (15,837) 

  

 Transfers from Trust Funds (Note 5) 86,746  51,834 

  

 Increase in Amount Due from Trust Funds (75,204 ) (14,870) 

 

 Decrease (Increase) in Accounts Receivable 4,470  (6,325) 

 

 Decrease (Increase) in Prepaid Expenses 1,009  (129) 

 

 Increase in Current Liabilities      4,674    15,843 

  

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH   (27,241 ) (45,109) 

 

CASH – Beginning of the Year  202,831  247,940 

 

CASH – End of the Year  $ 175,590  $ 202,831 

 

 

 

COMPRISED OF 

Current Assets - Cash  $   29,344  $   28,099 

   - Guaranteed Investment Certificates 25,000  25,000 

Restricted Assets - Cash  99,350  105,972 

   - Guaranteed Investment Certificates   21,896    43,760 

     $ 175,590  $ 202,831 

 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 

  C7. 
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FIRST-ST. ANDREW’S UNITED CHURCH 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2012 

"UNAUDITED" 

 

 

4. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

These financial statements report the activities related to the operations and administration of the Church.  

They do not report the assets or activities of the Board of Trustees or the UCW. 

 

  

5. BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

 

On January 1, 2012 the church adopted Canadian Accounting Standards for Not-for-Profit Organizations 

(“ASNPO”). These are the first financial statements prepared in accordance with ASNPO. The transition 

date is January 1, 2011 and all comparative information has been presented by applying ASNPO. 

 

It was determined that no adjustments to fund balances as at January 1, 2011 or surplus from operations for 

the year ended December 31, 2011 were necessary as a result of the transition to ASNPO, as there has been 

no restatement of any of the comparative information.  

 

The financial statements are presented on a fund basis.  The income, expenses and activities of the funds 

are reported directly within each fund.  The funds are restricted to their intended use as described below: 

 

Operating Fund 
To be used to operate the general activities and administration of the Church. 

 

Restricted Funds 

Music Funds – Administered by the Director of Music 

Bray Fund 

To provide support for undesignated music programs. 

 

Cram/King Fund 

To provide support to Children’s music programs. 

 

Eberhard Memorial Music Scholarship Funds 

To provide support for vocal music scholarships.  The Principal Fund must be retained while the Interest 

Fund may be spent. 

 

Inch/Petts Fund 

To provide support for undesignated music programs. 

 

C. Wilson Trust Funds 

To provide support to organ apprentice music programs. 

 

Friends of Music Fund 

To provide support for special music concerts and events. 

 

Wm. & I. McKane Bursary Fund 

To provide financial assistance in the form of bursaries to musicians. 
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      C8.  

FIRST-ST. ANDREW’S UNITED CHURCH 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2012 

"UNAUDITED" 

 

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION    (continued) 

 

Other Restricted Funds 

Discretionary Fund 

To provide funding for non budgeted expenditures as directed by the honourees. 

 

Benevolent Fund 

To provide support for discretionary benevolent purposes.  Administered by Ministerial staff. 

 

Clark Fund – Interest 

To provide support for continuing education.  The principal of the Fund is maintained by the Trustees and 

interest is transferred to the Church to provide income for the Fund. Administered by the Ministry & 

Personnel Committee. 

 

Hospitality Meals Fund 

To support the weekly hospitality meal program under the direction of the Mission, Outreach & 

Environment Committee. 

 

Capital Building Fund 

To be used for infrastructure renewal as outlined in the Avis Report under the direction of Council. 

 

Capital Reserve Fund 

To be used for capital expenditures under the direction of Council. 

 

 

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 

Financial Instruments 

The financial instruments of the Church consist of Cash, Guaranteed Investment Certificates, Amounts 

Receivable and Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities.  It is Council’s opinion that the Church is not 

exposed to significant interest, currency or credit risks arising from these financial instruments.  The 

measurement and carrying value of these financial instruments is market value. 

 

Revenue Recognition 

Revenue is recorded in the period to which it relates on an accrual basis. 

 

Capital Assets 

Capital assets consisting of land, buildings, furniture and equipment have been recorded at a nominal value 

of $1.  Current purchases of capital assets including renovations are expensed in the year of acquisition 

through the Capital Building and Capital Reserve Funds. 

 

Contributed Services 

The Church is dependent upon the many hours of volunteer work contributed by its members, the fair value 

of which cannot be estimated.  Contributed services are not recognized in these financial statements. 

 

      C9. 
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FIRST-ST. ANDREW’S UNITED CHURCH 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2012 

"UNAUDITED" 

 

 

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES    (continued) 

 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of the financial statements that are in accordance with Canadian generally accepted 

accounting principles requires Council to make estimates and assumptions that are based on currently 

available information.  Such estimates and assumptions may affect the reported amounts of assets, 

liabilities and fund balances as at the reporting date, and the reported amounts of revenue and expenditures 

during the fiscal period.  Actual results could differ from the estimates and the assumptions used. 

 

 

4. INTERFUND TRANSFERS 

 

Transfer from the Capital Reserve Fund to the Capital Building Fund 

To reallocate, in 2011, a donation received in 2010 credited to the Capital Reserve Fund that was 

intended for the Capital Building Fund. 

 

Transfers from the Operating Fund to the Capital Reserve Fund 

To transfer the amount received from the Board of Trustees for future capital expenditures.  (2011) 

 

Transfer from the Operating Fund to Hospitality Meals Fund 

To provide additional funds for the Hospitality Meals program. 

 

 

5. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

 

Due from Trust Funds represents amounts receivable from the Board of Trustees of First-St. Andrew’s 

United Church. 

 

Transfers from Trust Funds represent amounts received or receivable from the Board of Trustees of First-

St. Andrew’s United Church. 

 
 To the Operating Fund 2012 2011 

  $ 30,000 $ 40,000 from the Capital Fund 

  14,667  11,834 from the Wm. & J. Brown Fund 

  $ 44,667 $ 51,834 

 

 To the Capital Building Fund $ 42,079 $       -0-  from the Capital Fund-Contribution Match 

 

Transfer to Trust Funds represents the amount transferred to the Board of Trustees of First-St. Andrew’s 

United Church for management under the control of the Board of Trustees. 

 

 

 

 C10. 
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MEMBERSHIP AND NURTURE COMMITTEE 

 
The following are new members who joined our church in 2012. 
 Wayne McLachlan,   Norma  McLachlan,  

Kerry Mogg,    Donna Goulin, 
Holly Van Marwyk,   Mary Lou Douglas- Dubois. 
 

The following were confirmed 
  Robin Feeney, Grace MacPhail-Wagner, Fiona Robson, Cara Bulmer 
 
At the end of 2012 members numbered  549 individuals. 
 
Sub Committees 
Archives;   
Jim Hutchinson and committee of 5, keeps us up to date on all things that are happening in the 
background. Long term projects i.e. converting volumes of births, deaths, marriages to computer  
readable files. Updating history folders, binding of bulletins, and the presentation of the book  "An Auld 
Acquaintance.”  They meet monthly and would welcome new members. 
 
Congregational Visiting Team;    
Audrey Coulthard heads this committee.  Visiting Sick and Shut–ins has become increasingly difficult, 
due to privacy issues.  Often members will suggest that a person should be visited, but the visit is not 
wanted.  Thank you Audrey. 
 
Caring Callers;    
There are 19 callers working on this committee, under the leadership of Annabelle Logan.  They keep in 
touch with the less-connected members of our community.  
 
Coffee and Conversation;   
Donna Travis capably heads this committee. We are constantly trying to improve ways of handling this 
matter.    We find that the room is a little large for the numbers and are working constantly to improve 
the arrangements.  Thank you Donna.  Judi Walker collects the money donated at coffee time, and 
keeps the supplies in stock.  Apparently the money being donated each Sunday is basically paying for 
the supplies.  If there is a deficit then the funds would come from our budget. 
 
Counselling;  
Dr. Jo Ann Silcox sees approximately 25 people per month. We do appreciate all the time and work that 
goes into this. 
 
Funeral Committee;   
The new Food and Safety issues have made things more complicated for this committee.  Proudfoot Hall 
is the only room which can be used.  Again it is large and for small groups it is a bit overwhelming.  
However, we continue to work on this issue. There have been 5 receptions this year. Families are 
requested to choose someone to cater the food.   Thank you to the rotating group of volunteers who 
work with Helen Guthrie on this important ministry. 
 
Pastoral Care;  
Tom Hiscock works 20 hours a week.  He directs the Sunday School, visits when he can, and this year 
helped with the Christmas Pageant. We appreciate the many things he does over and above the 
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designated work.  Kate Crawford also visits in homes and hospitals.  We know there are only so many 
hours in a day and we appreciate their caring and compassion on these visits. We also appreciate Jo Ann 
Silcox stepping in to help with Pastoral Care in August. 
 
General Information;  
The main project for the coming year will be the new Photo Directory.  The last one was in 2008 and is 
quite outdated.  We will also continue to work on the NAME TAG issue. Volunteer Recognition has been 
returned to our committee and we will be addressing that issue in the near future. 
 
In Memoriam 

Margaret Lankin 
Al MacIntosh 
Arlene Thompson 
Ella England 
Eldon Hawkins 
Douglas Edmonds 
Gwen Coulter 
Jean Gorwill 
Gertrude Cole 
Jack Michael Deacon Burgoyne 
Rusty Robertson 

 
Thank you to the members of the committee, Jim Hutchinson, Helen Guthrie, Audrey Coulthard, Jo Ann 
Silcox, Barry Tiffin, Judi Walker, Jan Hendry, Joni Pypka, Jerry Austin, John MacDonald, Elaine Wilson, 
Annabelle Logan, Judi Walker and Tom Hiscock. 
 
Respectfully Submitted 
Jane Glaves (Chair) 
 

MINISTRY AND PERSONNEL COMMITTEE 

 
The Ministry and Personnel Committee has been ably served in 2012 by the following members: 
 Jane Hill –co-Chair 
 Jeanette Morgan-co-Chair 
 Kathryn Patton 
 Doug Walker 
 Bruce Moor 

David Wake 
Amanda Williams 

 
The role of this committee is to provide a confidential setting for consultation, support and assessment 
of all staff, both ministerial and lay.  The committee works to maintain and foster positive 
interrelationships within the team of staff employed at First St. Andrews.  
 
We are blessed at First-St. Andrew’s to have a dedicated and selfless staff.  Kate Crawford, our Minister 
of Worship and Administration leads our staff team. We are blessed to receive her spiritual guidance and 
pastoral care.  Paul Merritt, Director of Music, continues to lead an innovative music program both for 
worship and community outreach.    
 

Donna-Jeanne Andrews 
Marie Robinson 
Anita O’Brien 
Betty Milroy 
Norm Conkey 
Don McLean 
Bernice McHardy 
Leslie Wagner 
Barbara Stokes 
Anna Holman 
Margaret Hodgson 
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Maureen Scarborough, is the friendly face at the desk or voice on the phone who keeps us informed and 
connected.  Geoff Bottomley continues to sustain our church property through regular maintenance, 
cleaning and ingenious repairs. We said goodbye to Valarie DeJong who had been working as custodial 
support part time and were lucky to have Lisa Smith join us and settle into her role smoothly. 
 
Our Church Administrator, Debra Low has completed her first full year with us and has proven to be 
insightful and competent in her position.  Tom Hiscock continues to support us in Supply Ministry as FSA 
continues in the Search of a Pastoral Minister and a Youth and Family Minister.  We are blessed and 
thankful for him.  
 
2012 found us completing a Staff Handbook to be utilized by both staff and committee members as we 
navigate Church life.  This was an immense undertaking, thoughtfully completed by Jeanette Morgan, 
Bruce Moor and Kate Crawford and was added to the FSA website. 
 
The M&P Committee oversee the administration of the Robert Clark Fund, which in 1864  was 
established to be used to further education, training, and development of the ministry, staff, members 
and adherents of First-St. Andrew’s United Church. M&P developed policies and procedures to formalize 
the application process and the allocation of funds to successful applicants, the product of this 
endeavour is now located on the FSA website, allowing access to all.  Recipients in 2012 were Kate 
Crawford, the Nicaragua Youth Group and Council. 
 
We have been blessed to have been able to offer assistance and guidance through 2012 and we look 
forward to 2013 and the results of the Joint Search Committee. 
 
We will continue to offer support and aid in direction as the Staff Team makes its way through 2013, 
acknowledging the adjustments to be made in any new relationship, and assisting them to find their 
way.  We anticipate continued excellence in the services provided and ask each of you to keep them in 
your thoughts and prayers. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Jane Hill co-Chair,  
Ministry and Personnel Committee 
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MISSION OUTREACH AND THE ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE  (M.O.E.) 

 
This committee is passionately served by Linda Badke, Marilyn Beach, Barb Dalrymple, Liz Galbraith, 
Mary Ann Hodge, Laurel Kenney, Jean and Bill Knowles, David Manness, Lillian Reid, and Jane 
Westmorland.  We warmly welcome our newest members Pat Pettit and Don Reid! We are grateful to 
Linda Badke who has agreed to be our new Chair, starting in September 2013! 
 
In addition, we have a dedicated team of volunteers who help us significantly with projects throughout 
the year such as our Golf Committee Chairperson, Diane Knoppert. We are also filled with gratitude for 
the strong support of our minister Rev. Dr. Kate Crawford and our Office Manager, Debra Low who helps 
us accurately keep track of all of the funds we have raised. We also depend on our wonderful 
congregation who respond so abundantly to our events and projects. Thanks to all of you! 
 

Local, National and International Projects 
Mission and Service Fund 

 Most fundraising for the M and S Fund is accomplished through envelope givings, where 18% of 
revenue is reserved as our congregational donation. 

 Overseas Relief donations were designated for Hurricane Sandy as well as disaster relief in other 
areas of the world. 

 United Church of Canada Calendars were sold, Mandate Magazines made available and Minutes 
for Mission were given once a month. 

 We will no longer be offering the Observer Magazine Discount Group Subscription program but 
will encourage the congregation to renew their subscriptions individually. 

 
Hospitality Meals:  

 Statistics: Our volunteers served a total of 6278 meals last year, which is an average of 146 
people per meal. This is a decrease from 2011, when an average of 156 people came to each 
meal. However, the numbers have fluctuated more during 2012, with the lowest attending the 
meal was 85 and the highest was a record 197. 

 Volunteers: We are thankful for our faithful volunteers who are members of First-St. Andrew’s 
United Church, Riverside United Church, and people from the community. During 2012, we once 
again held meals during the summer months, and extra volunteers signed up to cover those who 
were away on holidays. We had three Youth Meals, when the youth from First-St. Andrew’s and 
Exeter United worked as volunteers. 

 Finances: 
Balance forward from 2011   3 174.78 
2012 Donations            12 286.87 
2012 Expenses    9 050.38 
______________________________________________________ 
Balance     6 411.27 
 

East London United Church Outreach (ELUCO):  
 First-St. Andrew’s is a partner of ELUCO, providing support to low-income families in East London 

through our Community Support Worker, Nancy Howard, of this congregation. 
 We provide 2 Board members, (Linda Badke and Janice Elliott) as well as financial support which 

is funded through our White Squirrel Golf Tournament, Walkathon and individual donations. 
 Please refer to the ELUCO annual report for more information. 
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St. Paul’s Daily Bread: 
 Emergency food and a hot lunch/social time is offered each weekday. 
 Donations of food and money are collected each Sunday at FSA. 
 The White Squirrel Golf Tournament provided additional funds for this extensive program. 
 Gifts were donated for their Christmas Hamper program for families.  
 

Amnesty International: 
 A Write-a-thon was held in April 2012. 
 90 Messages of Hope were signed during Advent. 

 
Grow-A-Row and Corn Roast: 

 These fundraisers for the Canadian Foodgrains Bank raised $10,940.60 at FSA this year.  We 
want to thank Tom McLarty for his many years of crop growing and also John McLarty for 
continuing the legacy after his Dad sold his land.  With the addition of the donations from St. 
Mary’s United Church, the total came to $17,673.76. These funds are matched 4:1 by the 
Canadian International Development Agency (CIDA). 

 We are one of over 200 churches in Canada supporting this wonderful project. This year we 
assisted 2.1 million folks in 36 countries. Thanks again to all who joined in this tremendous 
project - our biggest in our 18 years!!! 

 
Comfort Quilts: 

 Using mainly donated fabric, beautiful quilts have been created by a group of avid quilters who 
meet monthly. These quilts are then dedicated and sent to “Project Linus” which collects quilts 
and donates them to local children in need of comfort. 

 
Los Quinchos School 

 David Manness, with assistance from Mary Vernon, enthusiastically organizes our sales of Fair 
Trade, Organic, Nicaraguan coffee which is sold weekly at Coffee and Conversation to raise funds 
for this school for street children in Managua Nicaragua. 

 Our Volunteer group will be spending a day at Los Quinchos School as part of their trip to 
Nicaragua in 2013. 

 
Green FSA: 

 Rev. Janet Fradette, from Richards Memorial United Church spoke eloquently at our Environment 
Sunday in April 2012. Members of our committee also participated in this Service. 

 We became partners with Reforest London to encourage tree planting in London. 25 seedlings 
were distributed during the Plant Sale in May 2012. 

 
White Squirrel Golf Tournament, Silent Auction and Nature Walk: 

 Diane Knoppert again very capably organized our major fundraiser of the year, with the help of 
many dedicated volunteers. Margo Christodoulou will assist Diane as Co-Chair in 2013. 

 The tournament was a financial (close to $9000.00 raised!) as well as a social success and we 
look forward welcoming you to the next golf tournament on June 08, 2013!  
 

Mission Sunday: 
 Committee members participated in this service in February 2012, led by Rev. Matthew Stevens 

from London Conference who preached a thought-provoking sermon.  
 

Dorcas Widows Fund: 
 This group of grandmothers in Uganda creates beautiful jewellery to support their grandchildren, 

orphaned because of the AIDS related death of their parents. 
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 This jewellery was sold at FSA around Mother’s Day and Advent at Coffee and Conversation and 
in the church office on an ongoing basis this year to raise funds for this group. 
 

Alternative Gift Fair 
 Held 2 Sundays after church during Advent to remind people that the birth of Jesus proclaims 

God’s reign of justice.  
 Fair trade items were sold or items that supported a project for a specific justice organization. 
 Plan to expand this alternative shopping event in 2013. 

 
Mission/Volunteer Trip 

 Nine members of First-St. Andrew’s United Church are registered for a 
volunteer/educational/exposure trip to Nicaragua in July 2013 with the social enterprise, 
Companeros.  

 Those travelling include Martha Galea, Robin Feeney, Grace MacPhail-Wagner, Chris Lindsay, 
Linda Badke, Pat Pettit, David Knoppert and Jim and Janice Elliott.  

 We have paid our deposits, booked our flights, started Spanish lessons and done a lot of 
fundraising! We are filled with gratitude for all of the support we have received from the United 
Church of Canada (Vision Fund), our church staff, committees of our church council, especially 
Ministry and Personnel, Christian Development, Mission Outreach and the Environment, Worship 
and UCW as well as from many individuals who have helped us with our fundraising activities and 
made generous donations. Your support will allow us to work with those living in poverty in 
Managua, Nicaragua as well as have a profound impact on the lives of those travelling and on 
the life our congregation. Please contact Janice Elliott, (519-657-7183, janiceelliott04@gmail.com 
)or go to www.companeros.ca for further information. If this information is exciting for you, it is 
not too late to join our group! 

 
If you are interested in any of the projects and activities described above, please consider joining our 
committed group! 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Janice Elliott, Chair 

mailto:janiceelliott04@gmail.com
http://www.companeros.ca/
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MUSIC COMMITTEE 

Music is well said to be the speech of angels. 

 –Thomas Carlyle 1795-1881 
 

Thanks to Enid Merritt and her team, our musical year started off in a rousing fashion with the tenth 
annual “Taste of Burns” –an evening of food, fellowship, pipes, Scottish dancing, and Celtic 
entertainment at its best. 
 
On 5th February, Paul Merritt directed Baroque Fest (2)—another offering of more baroque gems with 
soloists, organ, and instrumentalists—featuring Bach’s Cantata 106. 
 
Our Friday Lenten Noon Recitals and Advent Noon Recitals, organized by Paul and Enid Merritt, were 
held again in 2012.  This outreach to congregation and community allows members of the church, as 
well as invited guests, to showcase their musical talents, in support of First-St. Andrew’s and its 
programmes.  We were especially pleased that the FSA Young Performers were able to participate in 
both series. 
 
On Friday, 24th February Aaron James, one of Paul Merritt’s former organ students and winner of the 
2011 Royal Canadian College of Organists National Organ Competition gave a fantastic recital in the 
sanctuary showcasing FSA’s splendid pipe organ. 
 
On Sunday 22nd April the senior choir and soloists, conducted by Paul Merritt and accompanied by a 
string orchestra, performed Baroque Splendor a programme that included the ever popular Vivaldi’s 
GLORIA and Handel’s CORONATION ANTHEMS.  This concert was well-received by the 
congregation and the greater London musical community.  
 
The Laudamus Bells, under the very able leadership of Barbara Plante, continue to be an important 
part of our music programme at First-St. Andrew’s as are The First-St. Andrew’s Strings under the 
equally able leadership of Bruce Richardson.  Joanne Richardson’s wonderful efforts with the Junior 
Joyfuls is much appreciated as are Enid and Paul Merritt’s successes with the Joyful Singers.  On your 
behalf, I should like to thank Margaret Tretheway who leads the newest group of young singers—Tots, 
Tunes, ‘n Teddies Too—a delightful group of enthusiastic under-threes.  
 
September saw a return visit from The Concert Opera Group, with Darryl Edwards, Artistic Director, 
presenting a sing-along version of The Mikado giving a spirited start to our Fall music programme.  In 
October, Cheryl Samson, on behalf of the Music Committee, took on the organization of a talent evening 
that not only provided great entertainment, but allowed members of the congregation to showcase their 
musical talent.  The proceeds helped support the general budget of the church.  Then, on Sunday, 4th 
November the Senior Choir and soloists, accompanied by organ and strings, presented Baroque Fest 
(III)—a well-attended concert of baroque music by Bach, Schutz, Purcell, Pergolesi, and others. 
 
In closing, I wish to acknowledge the very able and tireless Ministry of Music that Paul Merritt provides 
to this congregation—he is truly a gift to our community.  I should also like to acknowledge, the many 
people who volunteer of their time to sing in our senior choir, or play in our bell choir or in the FSA 
strings.  This year, I should like especially to acknowledge Nancy Jackson and Lynda Kennedy for the 
support that they gave Paul Merritt during the time that he was unable to play the organ because of an 
injury to his wrist.  Finally, the members of the Music Committee have worked very hard over the year 
to support and enhance musical activities at First-St. Andrew’s and I should like to thank my fellow 
committee members:  Anne Cummings, Doug Gonder, Ann MacPhail, John McDonald, Paul Merritt, Bruce 
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Richardson, and Cheryl Samson for all their efforts in 2012.  Without them our music committee and its 
programmes could not have been as inspiring and successful as they have been.  Reflecting on the past 
year, I think that Carlyle would have felt that the angels have “spoken ” frequently at First-St. Andrew’s 
over the past year. 
 
Paul Cooper, Chair, Music Committee 
 
Senior Choir Report 
The senior choir had another busy and inspiring year in 2012. With 55 dedicated members, our choir is 
one of the largest church choirs in Canada; and it is arguably one of the very best quality church choirs 
in Canada. This excellence has been sustained for so many years because of the outstanding leadership 
provided by Paul Merritt.  Our church and choir are extremely fortunate to have Paul's talent, hard work, 
dedication, and personal skills. Paul has developed a number of psychological techniques over the years 
to humor and motivate us, culminating in his claim in April that he even knows when the tenors are 
"thinking of making a mistake"!!  
 

This year, three new young adults have joined the choir as Vocal Scholars: Janine Herrmann-McLeod, 
Meaghan Sider, and Jordan Baldwin. They have not only improved the choir, but also provided 
outstanding entertainment at a recent choir party. We are also very pleased to welcome three new 
members, Sheila Beath and Susan and David McKane. On the other hand, we are very sorry to lose our 
Alto soloist, Terese Sirek Ng.  Terese has inspired many of us with her solos; and she has also provided 
excellent leadership for the Junior Joyfuls for many years.  
 

The choir performed two Baroque Fest concerts this year on April 22 and November 4.  For those of us 
that love the Baroque music of Vivaldi, Bach, Handel, Purcell, Pergolesi (and a number of lesser known 
composers such as Schutz and Scheidt), these concerts were inspiring to sing at least partly because of 
the excellent professional orchestra. Many comments showed that these concerts were also inspiring to 
many in the audience. I was particularly thrilled to sing Vivaldi's Gloria, some 44 years since Joan and I 
sang this in the Christ's College choir in Cambridge, England.  
 

Paul Merritt broke his left wrist before the first concert in April; but he continued to perform easier works 
with his wrist in a cast. Fortunately, Paul could call on the great talents of Lynda Kennedy and Nancy 
Jackson who performed yeomen service for the choir and church in the spring (and at other times as 
well). In one unique organ performance of the very difficult Widor Toccata, Lynda played the left hand 
part with her right hand, Paul played the right hand part, and they split the pedal part. Quite amazing! 
Small membership dues support most of the choir expenses for social events, choir-related equipment, 
and gown repairs and cleaning.   
     
I am very grateful to the committee members listed below for their fine service to the choir and the 
church. In particular, I want to acknowledge Harold and Nancy Jackson who are stepping down from 
Chairing the social committee. They have generously donated their house for our annual June dinner for 
several years, and have provided excellent leadership for our social dinners and functions.  
 
Past President:  Paul Cooper                
Secretary: Kerry Stover 
Treasurer: Bruce Moor                         
Library Committee: Helen and Bill Guthrie, and Ruth Adams 
Gown Committee: Marion Evans (Chair), and Ann Cunningham, and Christine Cavers  
Social Committee: Nancy and Harold Jackson (Co-Chairs), Barb Plante and Jan Richardson 
 
Respectively submitted, 
G. Michael Bancroft, President 2012 
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The Laudamus Bells 
In 2012 Laudamus Bells gave praise to God through music about once a month during Sunday Worship 
Services. In June, 4 members provided music at the Interfaith Anti-poverty Prayer Service held outdoors 
at St. Peter’s Cathedral. In November, 7 members played the handbell part of Cloudburst, a composition 
by Canadian Eric Whitacre, performed by the U.W.O. Orchestra, conducted by Gary McCumber. In 
December, 6 members played Christmas Carols at Sherwood Forest Library. Our most demanding 
venture was our annual performance at the Advent Noon Recital in the Music at First-St. Andrew’s 
Concert Series. 
 
The hard work of practicing is balanced with fun-loving fellowship events.  We celebrated in June with a 
potluck dinner party at the home of Pat and Gavin McGregor. The weather was uncooperative for this 
occasion so we appreciated the view of magnificent gardens through the windows. Following our 
summer break, in late August we enjoyed an outdoor gathering at the home of Barbara Plante to toast 
to a new season of ringing together. We feasted at the delicious buffet of culinary students at Fanshawe 
College’s Saffron’s for our Christmas party. 
 
We are ever grateful for the continued leadership and dedication of our very talented director, Barbara 
Plante.  We are most appreciative and indebted to Bruce Richardson for his willingness to step in for 
Barbara as circumstances require.  Behind the scenes, Wes Sole maintains our bells in top condition and 
we certainly appreciate his workmanship and efforts. 2012 Laudamus Bells members were Laura 
Bernardi, Anne Cummings, Michael Feeney, Mary Ellen Gustafson, Helen Heller, Nancy Howard, Bev 
Lindsay, Pat McGregor, Shelly Pinkard, Lisa Qi, Jan Richardson, Jane Smith, Pat Sole, and Margaret 
Trethewey. Talented musicians to fill in as substitute ringers included Adam Guthrie, Helen Guthrie and 
Susan Carscadden-Mifsud. Thank you to all who support our ministry.  
 
Nancy Howard 
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NOMINATING COMMITTEE 

 
In addition to the usual filling of vacancies on the various standing committees, the Nominating 
Committee facilitated the formation of a Search Committee to fill the two vacancies identified by FSA’s 
latest Joint Needs Assessment Committee Report. The vacancies are for a Visitation Minister and a Youth 
and Young Family Ministry Co-ordinator.  
 

The Nominating Committee would like to thank all the people who volunteer so willingly to serve on our 
Committees, and to thank the members of the Search Committee; David Wake (Chair), Kerry Stover 
(Secretary), Marilyn Beach, Audrey Coulthard, Jacob Feeney, Michael Feeney, Mary-Ellen Gustafson, 
Nancy Howard, Lillian Reid, and Bob Swartman. The contributions made by all these volunteers make all 
the difference in keeping the church functioning as a vital part of our community. 
 

Following is a list of the current Membership of all the standing Committees at FSA, and a list of the 
outgoing Committee Members for recognition and thanks. 

 
Committee Memberships and Nominations for 2013  

COUNCIL: 
 Chair: (Feb 2013 – Feb 2015)  Jo Ann Silcox 
 Past Chair of Council:    George Jolink 

  

 Secretary (Term of Office - 1 year):  Katherine Wonfor  
 

COMMITTEES OF THE CONGREGATION: 

  

Board of Trustees: 
Co-Chairs: John Eberhard (2007– 2012; 2013-2018)   - Renewing for 6 years 
  David Manness (2007– 2012; 2013-2018)  - Renewing for 6 years 
Members: Russ Gonder (1995-2001; 2001-2007; 2007–2012; 2013-2014))  - Renewing for 2 years
  June McKay (2009– 2015)    - Renewable 
  Russ Monteith (2011– 2017)    - Renewable 
  Bill Peel (2009 – 2015)    - Renewable 
  Robin Procunier (2010–2016)    - Renewable 
  Bob Schram (1995-2001; 2001-2007; 2007–2012; 2013-2016) - Renewing for 4 years 
  Bob Slater (2009–2015)    - Renewable 
  Katherine Wonfor - (2009–2015)   - Renewable 
  Kate Crawford (Staff)     
Christian Development: 
 Chair:   Allyson Watson 
 Members: Michael Feeney 
   Nancy Howard 
   Chris Lindsay 
   Susan McKane 
   Katie Glaves 
   Deanne Pederson 
   Glenda Robinson 
   Chris Silcox 
   Jo Ann Silcox 
   Monique Silcox 
   Tom Hiscock (Staff) 
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Finance: 
 Chair:  Harold Jackson 
 Members: Michael Bancroft 
   Catherine Charlton (New) 
   Carol Foley 
   Doug Jones 
   Don Reid 
   Donna Travis 
   Debra Low (Staff) 
Jean Brown Permanent Ad Hoc Committee to Council: 
 (1CD member, 1 Music member, 2 Congregational members, Minister) 
 
 Chair:  Allyson Watson 
 Members: Paul Cooper 
   Christina Lindsay 
   Ian Wright 
   Kate Crawford (Staff) 
Marketing and Communications: (Ad Hoc Committee) 
 Chair:  Doug Gonder 
 Members: Shelly Pinkard 
   Jim Silcox 
   Bob Swartman 
   Pat Tripp  
   Kate Crawford (Staff) 
Membership and Nurture: 
 Chair:  Jane Glaves 
 Members: Jerry Austin 
   Audrey Coulthard 
   Helen Guthrie 
   Jan Hendry 
   Jim Hutchinson 
   Annabelle Logan  
   John McDonald 
   Joni Pypka 
   Jo Ann Silcox 
   Barry Tiffin 
   Donna Travis 
   Judi Walker 
   Elaine Wilson 
   Marion Wilson 
   Tom Hiscock (Staff) 
Ministry and Personnel: 
 Chair:  Jeanette Morgan (New) 
 Vice Chair: Bruce Moor (New) 
 Members: Jane Hill 
   Kathryn Patton 
   David Wake 
   Doug Walker (New) 
   Jane Eberhard (New) 
   Kate Crawford (Staff) 
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Mission, Outreach and Environment (MOE): 
 Chair:  Linda Badke (New) 
 Members: Marilyn Beach 
   Barb Dalrymple 
   Janice Elliott 
   Liz Galbraith 
   Mary Ann Hodge 
   Laurel Kenney 
   Bill Knowles 
   Jean Knowles 
   David Manness 
   Pat Pettit 
   Lillian Reid 
   Jane Westmorland 
   Kate Crawford (Staff)   
Music: 
 Chair:  Paul Cooper 
 Members: Doug Gonder 
   Ann MacPhail (New) 
   John McDonald (New) 
   Paul Merritt (Staff) 
   Bruce Richardson 
   Cheryl Sampson (New) 
   Jane Archer Smith (New) 
   Paul Merritt (Staff) 
Nominating Committee: 
 Chair:  George Jolink (New) 
 Members: Jane Glaves (Chair, Membership and Nurture) 
   Glenda Pennington 
   Bob Slater (New) 
   Jim Hutchinson 
   Kate Crawford (Staff) 
Property: 
 Chair:  Mary Ann Hodge 
 Members: Willis Buckingham 
   Russ Gonder 
   Bill Guthrie 
   Jim Hendry 
   Adam Plante 
   Peter Ross 
   Kerry Stover 
   Donna Travis  

Paul Merritt (Staff)    
Stewardship: 
 Chair:  To Be Appointed 
 Members: Harold Jackson 
   George Jolink     
   David Manness 
   Debbie Schram 
   Katherine Wonfor 
   Kate Crawford (Staff) 
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Worship: 
 Co-Chairs: Kerry Stover (New) 
   Joan Bancroft (New) 
 Members: Stephen Adams (New) 
   Sheila Alton (New) 
   John MacDonald (New) 

Barry Moore 
   Dennis Pellarin 
   Jim Silcox 
   Harv Taylor 
   Barry Tiffin 
   Jane Westmorland     
   Kate Crawford (Staff) 
   Paul Merritt (Staff) 
 

PRESBYTERY REPRESENTATIVES: (Term of Office – 4 years – Renewable) 
 Linda Badke (2006-2010; 2010-2014) 
 Barb Dalrymple (2011-2015) 
 Bill Knowles (2006-2010; 2010-2014) 
 Jean Knowles (2006-2010; 2010-2014) 
 Bob Vosper (2006-2010; 2010-2014) 
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Recognition of Outgoing Committee Members and Chairs for 2012-2013 
 

COUNCIL: 
 Chair of Council:   George Jolink  
 
Finance: 
 Member:  Dennis Dalton 
 
Ministry and Personnel: 
 Members: Amanda Williams 
 
Mission, Outreach and Environment (MOE): 
 Chair:  Janice Elliott (as of September 2013)  
  
Music: 
 Members: Anne Cummings 

Mary Estevez 
   Adam Plant  
   Jean Wuensch 
 
Nominating Committee: 
 Chair:  Jackie Williams 
 Members: Louise Slater 
 
Property: Ross MacDonald 
 
Stewardship: 
 Chair:  Judith Walker 
 
Worship: 
 Chair:  Jo Ann Silcox 
 Members: June McKay     

Mary McKim 
Bob Vosper 

   Katherine Wonfor (Secretary) 
 

Respectfully submitted 
 
Jackie Williams, Chair of the Nominating Committee (2011-2013) 
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PROPERTY COMMITTEE 

 
Members of this committee are: Willis Buckingham, Donna Travis, Kerry Stover, Bill Guthrie, Paul 
Mansell, Ross MacDonald, Peter Ross, Jim Hendry and Mary Ann Hodge (chair). 
      

Avis Projects ($28,542) 
Priority 1 Projects 

 1.7 Repaired fire exit stair at St. Andrew’s Hall.  
 1.8 Repair / re-point parapets at Parlour addition. 
 1.15 Add emergency lighting to the building as required 

 
Priority 2 Projects:  

 2.3 Continue with mortar joints in various locations.  
 2.6 Repair of fluted arch frames at Tower entry delayed to coincide with chimney repairs. 
 2.7 Repairs to chimneys deferred to the Spring due to late departure of chimney swifts. 

 
Capital Reserve Projects ($18,929) 

Roof  
 Repairs to roof at the atrium where water has been leaking in. 
 

Miscellaneous Projects  
  

 Replaced toilets in 3 convenience washrooms and installed grab bars. 
 Painted Church School classrooms in conjunction with Christian Development committee. 
 Began re-lining of parking lot to add more parking spaces. Ultimately this will add 9 parking 

spots. 
 Increased parking rentals to reflect market rates. 

 
2013 Expected Projects  

 
 Complete restoration of the Tower entry, including stairs, handrails and a review of the request 

to change the front doors to glass. Also included is new rod tie-down system for the spire. 
 Investigation of sanctuary joists at the chancel. 
 Completion of chimney repairs deferred from 2012. 

 
 
Property TOTAL expenses  =   $ 90,212 
 
Property Committee expenses  =   $ 41,972      
Heat, Hydro/water, Insurance  =   $ 40,490   
Farquhar House expenses   =   $   6,394  

 



 

46  

6%

11%

18%

13%
18%

27%

7% 6%     Maintenance supplies (cleaning supplies,
Washrooms, Line Painting, repair mat'ls)    

11%  Grounds (Snow Removal & Lawn/Garden)

18%  Monthly Contracts (Progarde Security, Chubb
Alarm, Elevator service, Culligan - Water treatment,
hot water tank rentals)

13%   Plumbing, Electrical, Heat & A/C 
(maintenance & repairs)

18%   Insurance  

27%   Util i ities (Hydro/Water & Gas)

7%     Farquhar House (taxes & maintenance)
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STEWARDSHIP COMMITTEE 

 
As I write this message, my last as Chair of the Stewardship Committee, my mind turns to the people 
who have graciously joined with me as committee members over the last three years.  Together we 
have worked to better understand the role of Stewardship at First-St. Andrew’s United Church (FSA). 
 
I thank each of them for their energy, their commitment and their passion for the work of FSA.  They 
are: Harold Jackson, George Jolink, David Manness, Debbie Schram, Katherine Wonfor.  We have been 
ably served by Dr. Kate Crawford in terms of process and other issues.  I would also like to thank Debra 
Low and Maureen Scarborough who have assisted in the production of the various mailings and bulletin 
messages throughout the year.  Their help has been significant in our work. 
 
A formal Stewardship Committee is relatively new to FSA and different than other churches within the 
United Church of Canada; we have walked forward creating a model that is unique to our particular 
family of faith.  
 
We are blessed to be a part of this congregation where we share many common values as stewards in 
God’s world.  We have developed a number of plans and scenarios each supporting the concept of 
Stewardship in its more formal sense as ‘keeper’s of the hall’. In our particular case we are charged with 
responsibility for attracting operating and capital funds that ensure both programs and our spiritual 
home continue to serve God’s purpose for us and that we are able to live out our mission as ‘an inclusive 
Christian Family encouraging spiritual growth through worship, friendship, learning and action’. 
 
We were pleased to be involved in developing the first Narrative Budget in collaboration with Harold 
Jackson and the Finance Committee. With this document we were able to provide a snapshot in time of 
how we allocate funds as they are raised.  Our Committee also made a significant effort to be involved 
with the Strategic Planning sessions held throughout the year.  This work will act as a guide to all of the 
committees as they plan their annual activities.  
 
Our major project for the year is the development of a six-week program each autumn under the banner 
of Sustaining the Heartbeat. Working with the Finance Committee to establish the financial goal; we 
then recruit members of the congregation to assist in delivering a personal stewardship message about 
the difference FSA makes in their life.  I thank each of them for their time, passion and commitment.  
 
I began this part of my FSA experience at the request of Stan Hill.  For that I thank him.  I have learned 
so very much about the United Church of Canada and FSA.  I am humbled by the time that my fellow 
stewards who sit on Council, and committees, invest in the life of FSA.  I would like to thank Kate 
Crawford who has been my patient guide and educator.  I have enjoyed our many thoughtful 
discussions. 
 
This year your Council has studied a book by Diana Butler Bass, Christianity for the Rest of Us.  There is 
much wisdom in Bass’ words.  Those that come to mind are ....’we are only human and, despite our 
marvellous intellectual capabilities, there will always be things we cannot know.  In that gap, God 
breathes, and there, we experience awe.’  I invite others, when asked, to serve in the formal life of FSA 
and to be a part of the ‘awe’ that guides us as members of this welcoming congregation. 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
Judith Walker  
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WORSHIP COMMITTEE 

 
Come, let us worship together! 
 

2012 has been a year in which all of God’s people have found their voices in Worship. 
 

Increasing involvement of young and old, trained and lay, traditional and non-traditional participants has 
breathed new life into our times of corporate worship.  A large contingent of Lay Liturgists now regularly 
offer their gifts.  Children assist in the presentation of the Scripture sentence at the beginning of 
Worship and in the sacrament of Baptism—welcoming new members into their community and ours.   
The annual Youth Service is anticipated with great delight as our young people sing, play, preach, and 
read their way through ever more complex services.   Special services celebrating Mission, UCW, 
Environment, Stewardship are but a few of the extraordinary ways in which this congregation has come 
to celebrate God, Creation and one another. 
 

Guest preachers this last year have included Rev. Camilia Larouche, Rev. Kate Young, Rev. Dr. Barry 
Moore, Kerry Stover, Dr. Jo Ann Silcox and others. 
 

Dr. Crawford has begun a delightful new collaboration with the Grand Theatre, basing a sermon series 
on the 2012-13 play lists. 
 

We have begun to develop Joint Worship Services with Dundas Street Center and with Metropolitan 
United Churches and look forward to expanding this collaboration in the years ahead. 
 

None of this would have been possible without the sterling leadership of Rev. Dr. Kate Crawford, Mr. 
Paul Merritt and Rev. Tom Hiscock and without the steady month by month behind the scenes work of 
June McKay, Joan Bancroft, Jane Westmorland, Dennis Pellarin and Barry Tiffin, Jim Silcox, Barry Moore, 
Bob Vosper, Katherine Wonfor, Lillian Reid, Harv Taylor and Kerry Stover. 
 

And of course without the faithful attendance of the congregation as a whole week after week, worship 
would have been empty—as it is in the antiphonal praise of leaders and congregants alike that the Spirit 
is present. 
 

Thanks be to God for this blessed family of God! 
 
Jo Ann Silcox 
Chair, FSA Worship Committee 
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OTHER GROUPS 

FSA SUPPER CLUB 
       
Our monthly gatherings are attended by 60 to 80 folks, and offer a great opportunity to get to know our 
FSA friends better, and to enjoy fabulous dishes, each carefully prepared by undoubtedly some of the 
best cooks in town!  We each donate something to the Pot Luck, and a Toonie to help our willing kitchen 
helper, Renata.  After our supper we enjoy a Sing-Song led by Paul Merritt who always adds greatly to 
the fun. 
 

Our programs were interesting again this year ,and started in January with guest MICHELLE GATT  from 
Senior’s Access, London, who explained the programs and services available to London Seniors , and to 
those caring for elderly loved ones, also some helpful tips about making the decision to “scale down”. 
 
    In February BARB VanRASSAL and JANE DREW from LHSC Transplant Unit gave valuable insight into 
the “Gift of Life” program. This amazing Multi-Organ Transplant Unit celebrated its 20th Anniversary in 
August, 2011. The use of Organ Donor cards was explained, and we were encouraged to seriously 
consider this option, and to talk it over with family members. 
 

    FSA member RUSS MONTEITH Q.C. shared some ideas of ‘Avoiding Taxes Honestly’  in March, and 
we were grateful for his witty input. 
 

    ERIC COATES, Artistic Director of the Blyth Festival gave us some insight into the productions being 
performed, and as a result some of our members attended some of the shows. Eric has had 
considerable and varied experience with theatre, including 4 seasons at Stratford. 
 

    Our May guest was LIBBY DALRYMPLE, daughter of Barb Dalrymple, who has worked extensively as a 
Volunteer with HONDURAN CHILDREN gave a heart-warming presentation of her work, a truly 
passionate involvement for her.  
  
    In May, retiring convenor June McKay who has led the group for a number of years, was honoured 
and presented with a lovely gift and card from the members. 
 

This fall has seen some re-grouping with various members offering to take on one program.  
   The October meeting was cancelled as the kitchen was needed for the preparation of the turkey pie 
project for the Holly Bazaar. 
 

    In November convenor Barb Dalrymple welcomed FSA members MIKE and JOAN BANCROFT, BILL 
and CHARLOTTE OLDHAM, also MARJ and ART FRANKEL from Metropolitan church who had recently 
toured Israel and Jordan. 
 
Everyone is welcome to attend any of our meetings. Please bring a friend or two, and join us on the 4th 
Tuesday of the month.  
 
Respectfully submitted,   
June McKay 
 
Supper Club Financial Report 
Over this past year we have made donations to speakers and worthy causes of $225.  With our low 
budget we manage to hire a dishwasher for our meetings which we most appreciate.  Our present bank 
balance is $307.54 
Jim Hendry, Treasurer 
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UCW 

 
UCW Purpose:  To unite women of the congregation for the total mission of the church and to provide a 
medium through which we may express our loyalty and devotion to Jesus Christ in Christian WITNESS, 
STUDY, FELLOWSHIP and SERVICE. 
 
First-St. Andrew’s UCW is now comprised of two units with approximately 100 active members who 
usually meet monthly for worship, fellowship and have speakers on various topics of interest.   These 
are the Tuesday Evening unit and the Mary and Martha unit.  Many other women of the congregation 
support our projects. 
 
Following are some of the services provided to the congregation by the UCW: 
- UCW conducted the church service on January 29th to commemorate the UCW 50th Anniversary. 
  The group “Joy in the Harvest Drum Choir” were featured. 
- Maytime Communion Service and Tea was held in May. Shuts-ins were bussed to the church and  
  following the service refreshments were served and each lady was given a flower.    
- Corresponding secretary, has sent many letters to bereaved families, those persons in hospital or sick   
   at home, and to people who have made a special contribution to the church. 
- Care of the church kitchens in Proudfoot Hall, the Parlor, and the Fireside Room. 
- The Flower Committee made provision for a floral arrangement at each Sunday service and decorating  
   The church for the special seasons of Easter, Thanksgiving and Christmas.   
- Isabelle Getliffe Sewing Group meet weekly from Spring to Fall to prepare items for sale at the Bazaar. 
- Money raising projects were the Spring and Fall Rummage Sale convened by Jim and Jan Hendry, 
  Holly Bazaar convened by Deborah Roberts and Heather Vosper, the Marathon Bridge games organized  
   by Joni Pypka, Phantom Tea envelopes and the use of green offering envelopes. 
- In addition to our donations to several organizations under Priority I and Priority II (for details of  
  donations see UCW Budget) funding was provided to send two youngsters from ELUCO to camp  
  Kee-Mo-Kee, as well as the following donations - $500 to the Moragora Women’s Centre in Tanzania,  
  purchase of two freezers for the Pie Ladies to store meat pies.  This team made 2,668 meat pies and  
  will continue this project in 2013.   
  Funding for railing on steps in sanctuary 
 
We are grateful for the support of members of the congregation and for the opportunity to serve the 
church. 
 
Respectfully submitted,   
Sally Smith, Recording Secretary 
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UCW FINANCIAL STATEMENT at December 31, 2012 

      Statement of Financial Position at December 2012 
 

      

Assets 
  

 as at 
December 
31st, 20112  

 at Jan. 1, 
2012  

 

 
Bank Account 

 
27,768 14,029 

 

 
Petty Cash 

 
0 200 

 

 
Investments 

 
32,000 44,000 

 

 
Other assets 

 
218 713 

GST receivable; claimed 
at Dec 31 2012 

Total Cash and 
Investments 

  
59,986 58,942 

 

      Liabilities 

  
-98 0 

 

      
Funds 

     

 

A. Webster 
Fund 

 
2,226 2,226 

 

 
Accts Payable 

 
0 1,018 

 

 
Operating Fund 

 
57,858 55,698 

 

      Total Liabilities & 
Funds Balance 

  
59,986 58,942 

 

     

 
 
 

  
INVESTMENTS Maturity Date Principal 

  
8000339-15 

TD Special 
Offer GIC-
1.85% 

 
August 15th, 
2014 

$12,000 

      
  

  0001-8000339-14 GIC 2.2% redeemable Sept. 9, 2013 $20,000 

      
  

        
Total 

Investments $32,000 
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Statement of Operations for the year ending December 31st, 2012 

      

 
REVENUE 

 

 DDecember 31st, 

202012  

Budget 

2012 

 

 

Donations 

    

 

  Green Envelopes 

 

  3,062    3,500 

 

 

  Bequests 

 

         0           0 

 

 

  Thank offering 

 

         0           0 

 

 

  Flowers 

 

  2,100    1,500 

 

 

  Phantom Tea 

 

  1,260    1,400 

 

 

  Prayer Shawl Ministry 

 

  1,162           0 

 

 

  Miscellaneous Donations 

 

     126       100 

 

 

   Total Donations 

 

  7,710    6,500 

 

 

Earnings 

    

 

Unit Contribution 

 

     540           0 

 

 

  Bazaar 

 

10,460    7,500 

 

 

  Rummage Sale 

 

  3,033    1,500 

 

 

Pie Sales 

 

11,494 

  

 

  Catering/Meals 

 

     452       600 

 

 

  Other Fund Raising Events (Antique 

Sale) 

 

     336           0 

 

 

  Investment Income 

 

     196       500 

 

 

  Other Earnings 

 

     244           0 

 

 

  Total Earnings 

 

26,755  10,100 

 

 
TOTAL REVENUE 

 
34,466  16,600 

 

      

 
EXPENSES 

    

 

Outreach 

    

 

Priority I Outreach (January) 

    

 

  East London United Church Outreach 

Cluster 

 

  1,000    1,000 

 

 

  Limberlost Chaplaincy        600       600 

 

 

  Southdale Chaplaincy 

 

     400       400 

 

 

  Rotholme Wom. & Fam. Centre 

 

     500       500 

 

 

  My Sister's Place 

 

     500       500 

 

 

  Daily Bread (Jan & July & Sep)\ 

 

  1,000    1,000 

 

 

Friends of NPR 

 

       25           0 

 

 

Priority II Outreach (December) 

    

 

  Five Oaks Christian Training Centre 

 

         0           0 

 

 

  Beth Emmanuel Church 

 

         0           0 

 

 

  Women's Community House 

 

     300       300 

 

 

  Canadian Bible Society 

 

         0           0 

 

 

Global Health 

 

     400       400 

 

 

  Francis Sandy Theological Centre 

 

         0           0 

 

 

Mission & Service - U.C. of Canada 

 

15,000  15,000 
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Other Outreach 

    

 

Prayer Shawl Ministry 

 

     595       200 

 

 

Camp Kee-Mo-Kee 

 

     576       550 

 

 

Gifts to Shut-Ins 

 

     449       300 

 

 

FSA Congregational 

 

  1,458    2,000 

 

 

 Misc. Other Outreach 

 

       10         75 

 

 
Total Outreach 

 

22,813  22,825 

 

      

 
Miscellaneous Expenses 

    

 

Bazaar 

 

     474   2,000 

 

 

Rummage Sale 

 

       98      450 

 

 

Pies 

 

  3,520 

  

 

Misc. Fundraisers (Antique Sale, etc.) 

 

         0           0 

 

 

Flowers 

 

     956    1,500 

 

 

Catering/Meals 

 

     191       500 

 

 

Middlesex Presbyterial 

 

     285       231 

 

 

Workshops/Seminars 

 

     420       500 

 

 

Subscriptions/Journals 

 

     275       250 

 

 

Banners 

 

         0       100 

 

 

Speakers/Courtesy 

 

     527       850 

 

 

Purchases - includes items for kitchen 

 

  1,595       500 2 Freezers = $1,446.26 

 

Other Misc. Expenses 

 

     200           0 pins 

 
Total Miscellaneous Expenses 

 
  8,540    6,881 

 

 
General & Administrative Expenses 

    

 

postage, copying, bank charges, office 

supplies 

 

     115       250 

 

 

Kitchen/Cleaning 

 

     510       750 

 

 

Other Misc. General & Administrative 

Expenses 

 

     328       320 

 

 
Total General & Admin Expenses 

 

     953    8,201 

 

 
TOTAL EXPENSES 

 

32,306  31,026 

 

      

 
NET INCOME/(LOSS) 

 

  2,160 -14,426 
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ANNUAL CONGREGATIONAL MEETING MINUTES - FEBRUARY 13, 2011 

First-St. Andrew’s United Church 
ANNUAL MEETING 

Sunday, February 12, 2012 
Proudfoot Hall, 12:00 pm 

 

 
1.0  Invocation:  The Rev. Dr. Kate Crawford opened the meeting with prayer. 

 
2.0  Election of Chair and Secretary of Congregational Meeting 

 
MOTION:  That George Jolink be appointed chair and Katherine Wonfor be appointed secretary of 
the 2012 Annual Meeting. 
MOVED:  By Paul Cooper, seconded by Debbie Schram.  Motion carried. 
 

3.0  Welcome:  George Jolink called the Annual Meeting to order at 12:03 pm and welcomed the 
members of the congregation.  The Annual Meeting is an opportunity to reflect on the past year and 
to explore possibilities for the year to come.  The congregation was thanked for their commitment to 
FSA.  

 
4.0  Approval of Minutes 
 

MOTION:  That the Minutes of the February 13, 2011 Annual Meeting be approved. 
MOVED:  By John Eberhard, seconded by Jackie Williams.  Motion carried. 
 

5.0  Committee Reports 
 

5.1 Finance Committee 
 

Harold Jackson, Chair of Finance, presented the 2012 budget in two forms: a narrative budget 
and a financial review. 
 

The narrative budget described how the activities and financial gifts of the congregation support 
the mission statement of First-St. Andrew’s.  The 2012 budgeted stewardship outputs are 
Worship (33%), Action (35%), Friendship (16%), and Learning (16%).   
 

Mr. Jackson reviewed the 2011 financial results.   
 There was a surplus of $47,754 at December 31, 2011.   
 $40,000 of the surplus has been transferred to the capital reserve.  
 Phase I of the Avis Report projects have been completed and Phase II projects will be finalized 

as financing allows. 
 

The 2012 Budget Forecast was circulated.  A balanced budget is projected. 
 

MOTION: To approve the 2012 budget forecast as circulated. 
MOVED:  By Debbie Schram, seconded by Janice Elliott.   
DISCUSSION:  The 2012 budget does not reflect any staffing changes that may be recommended 
by the Joint Needs Assessment Committee report.  If staff changes occur during 2012 the budget 
would be revised. 
MOTION:  Motion carried. 
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MOTION:  That the firm of Gary E. Mason, Chartered Accountant be appointed as the firm of 
record for the Review Engagement Audit Report of First-St. Andrew’s United Church for the year 
ending 2012. 
MOVED:  By Harold Jackson, seconded by Jean Knowles.  Motion carried. 
 
 
Revisions to the Finance Committee Policy and Procedures were circulated.  The substance of the 
revisions is to clarify the role of Treasurer, and lines of accountability. 
 
MOTION:  That the Annual Meeting of the Congregation of First-St. Andrew’s United Church 
approve Finance impacted revisions to the “FSA Statement of Policy and Procedures”. 
MOVED:  By Harold Jackson, seconded by Mike Bancroft.  Motion carried. 
 
MOTION:  To transfer $5,000 from the 2011 surplus to the Mission and Service Fund of the 
United Church of Canada. 
MOVED:  By Don Reid, seconded by Mary McKim. 
DISCUSSION:   

 FSA donates 18% of envelope givings to the M&S Fund, and the Fund is supported by the 
UCW. 

 In addition to the M&S Fund, the congregation supports outreach through Mission, Outreach 
and Environment Committee projects. 

 18% of special offerings (such as Christmas envelopes) are donated to the M&S Fund unless 
the offering is designated to a specific project. 

 A reduction in the percentage of envelope givings designated to the Mission and Service Fund 
from 22% to 18% was approved at the February 8, 2009 Annual Meeting.  The 2011 surplus 
allows FSA to make a special gift to the M&S Fund. 

 The $5,000 donation would come from the operating fund.  The Finance Committee 
recommends the operating fund contain $50,000 to $75,000 to deal with monthly fluctuations 
in givings. 

 
AMENDED MOTION:  That the motion to transfer $5,000 from the 2011 surplus to the Mission 
and Service Fund of the United Church of Canada, be referred to the Finance Committee for 
consideration and then brought to Council. 
MOVED:  By David Knoppert, seconded by Donna Travis.  Motion carried, with opposition. 
 
Appreciation was expressed to Harold Jackson for the clarity of the financial report and to the 
Finance Committee for their work on behalf of the congregation. 

 
5.2 Mission, Outreach and Environment Committee 

 
MOTION: That First-St. Andrew’s United Church supports and acknowledges the by-laws and 
work of the East London United Church Outreach (ELUCO) ministry in principle and financially, as 
we are able.  
MOVED:  By Janice Elliott, seconded by Barb Dalrymple.  Motion carried. 
 
MOTION:  That First-St. Andrew’s United Church seeks to actively participate in the direction of 
the ELUCO ministry and recommends Linda Badke and Janice Elliott as candidates for the ELUCO 
board. 
MOVED:  By Donna Travis, seconded by Mary Vernon.  Motion carried. 
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5.3  Nominating Committee 
 

A written report from the Nominating Committee was circulated. 
 
The following changes to the written report were requested: 

 Pat McGregor to be removed from the Ad Hoc Marketing and Communications Committee 
 The Rev. Dr. Kate Crawford to be added as an ex officio member of the Nominating Committee 
 Jane Glaves to be added to the Nominating Committee 
 Joan Bancroft, June McKay, Barry Moore, Harv Taylor and Lillian Reid to be added to the  

Worship Committee 
 
MOTION:  That the report of the Nominating Committee be accepted with the above changes. 
MOVED:  By Jackie Williams, seconded by Paul Cooper.  Motion carried. 
 
Jackie Williams, Chair of Nominating, reported that the Nominating Committee recommended to 
Council at their December 2011 meeting that the requirement for a maximum of three Terms of 
Office for members of Committees be removed.  The motion notes that the removal of set terms 
does not apply to Committee Chairs, who retain the current terms of office, or to the Board of 
Trustees who have their own terms of office, as do Presbytery Representatives.  This motion was 
approved by Council. 
 
MOTION:  That the requirement for a maximum of three Terms of Office for regular FSA 
committee members be removed and the wording in the Statement of Policies and Procedures in 
Section 3.2.7, and any other references to these terms be changed accordingly.  The change in 
wording in Section 3.2.7 will be changed from: 
 
“It is recommended that no member of the congregation serve on any one committee for more 
than three consecutive terms. However, where there will be more than a 60% turnover of 
membership on any committee and in the opinion of the Nominating Committee an unacceptable 
impairment of the operation of the committee would thereby result, the congregation on the 
recommendation of the Nominating Committee may extend for a further term or terms on a 
committee of a person whose term would otherwise extend beyond the three term 
recommendation.” 
 
To: 
“Regular committee members may extend their three year terms indefinitely if they so desire and 
if this is sanctioned by the Chair of their Committee. This does not apply to members of the 
Board of Trustees, Presbytery Representatives, or Church Officers, all of whom have their own 
Terms of Office. The summary of all the various Terms of Office is listed in Appendix A of this 
Statement of Policies and Procedures of First-St. Andrew’s United Church.” 
 
MOVED:  By Jackie Willliams, seconded by Doug Jones. 
DISCUSSION:  The rationale of limiting committee members to a maximum of three terms was to 
ensure turnover of committee membership.  Since there is no cap on the number of members on 
a committee, new people may join without the resignation of existing members.  
MOTION:  Motion carried. 

 
5.4 Board of Trustees 

 
John Eberhard, Co-Chair, Board of Trustees reported to the meeting.   
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Mr. Eberhard thanked Stan Hill who is resigning from the Trustees.  Mr. Hill’s wisdom and 
guidance will be missed. 
 
Thanks were also extended to Harold Jackson, Chair of Finance, for his contribution to the Board 
of Trustees.   
 
Mr. Eberhard reported that the unrestricted trust funds have exceeded the CAP benchmark of 
two times the annual cost of church operations.  On behalf of the congregation, the Trustees 
gratefully acknowledged the bequests received in 2011.  These thoughtful gifts will continue to 
sustain the work of First-St. Andrew’s. 
 
MOTION:  That the congregation of First-St. Andrew’s United Church, Middlesex Presbytery, 
London Conference hereby: 
1) Determines and directs that for the year 2012, it will carry only the insurance in the attached 

policy; 
Ecclesiastical Insurance Co. Policy #0102687FB01.5.0 
 

2) Acknowledges that the limits in such insurance policy or policies may be less than the full 
replacement cost of the buildings insured under the attached policy or policies. 
  

3) Releases the Trustees of First-St. Andrew’s United Church from any obligation to maintain 
insurance coverage with higher limits than that provided in the attached policy or policies, 
and agrees to indemnify and save harmless the Trustees of First-St. Andrew’s for all claims 
with respect to such obligations. 

 
4) Releases the Board of Trustees of First-St. Andrew’s United Church from any actions taken on 

behalf of the congregation in respect of property held by the Board in the name of the 
congregation and agrees to indemnify and save harmless the Trustees of First-St. Andrew’s 
from all claims with respect to such decisions taken during the year 2011. 
 

MOVED:  By Bob Vosper, seconded by Barb Plante. 
DISCUSSION:  The statement “such insurance policy or policies may be less than the full 
replacement cost of the buildings” is included to protect the Board of Trustees from personal 
liability if it became necessary to replace the building and the cost exceeded the insured amount. 
Russ Gonder, Chair of the Trustees Insurance Committee, assured the meeting that the building 
is insured at its full estimated value. 
MOTION:  Motion carried. 
 
John Eberhard thanked Russ Gonder who has acted as chair of the Insurance Committee for 
many years.   

 
Bob Slater, Co-Chair, Memorials Committee, presented the proposed Proudfoot Legacy Tree 
Policy.  The policy outlines how end-of-life gifts to First-St. Andrew’s will be recognized. 
 
MOTION:  To approve in principle the Proudfoot Legacy Tree Policy. 
MOVED:  By Bob Slater, seconded by Cynthia Simpson.  Motion carried. 

 
5.5 Adoption of Committee Reports 

 
The following amendments to the Committee Reports published in the 2011 Annual Report were 
requested: 
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 Ministry and Personnel Committee report amended to read: “Geoff Bottomley and Valerie 
DeJong Richard ensure the building is maintained and functioning and provide support for 
groups and organizations that place significant demands on our space.” 

 Worship Committee report amended to add thanks to Joan Bancroft for coordinating the 
readers for Sunday services. 
 

MOTION:  That the Committee Reports as published in the 2011 Annual Report be adopted as 
amended. 
MOVED:  By Kerry Stover, seconded by Susan Wark.  Motion carried. 

 
6.0  Recognition of Volunteers 
 

On behalf of the congregation, Jackie Williams expressed gratitude to the men and women who 
volunteer their time and talent at First-St. Andrew’s. 
 
Donna Travis, Volunteer Co-ordinator, presented FSA pins to committee members who completed 
their terms in 2011: 
Board of Trustees:  Stan Hill 
Christian Development:  Cynthia Simpson 
Marketing and Communications (Ad Hoc):  David Flynn, Tara Gonder, Bob Peel, Krista Vogt 
Membership and Nurture:  Karin Barth, Jean Comfort, Bev Lindsay, Louise Slater, Donna Travis 
Ministry and Personnel:  George Jolink, Helen Mahabir, Wendy Thompson 
Mission, Outreach and the Environment:  Mike Bancroft, Audrey Coulthard, David Knoppert, Terry 
Peters 
Music:  Margaret Wardlaw 
Property:   Russ Scorgie, Heather Vouvalidis 
Worship:  Anne Cummings, Muriel Parsons 
 
The congregation remembered Frank Meadows and Elspeth Watson, members of the Worship 
Committee. 

 
7.0   Other Business 
 

7.1 Joint Needs Assessment Committee Update 
 

George Jolink reported that JNAC has completed their report and the report was accepted by 
Council at its February 8, 2012 meeting.  Presbytery will call a special meeting of the 
congregation to present the recommendations from the report.  If the congregation accepts the 
report, a search committee will be convened. 

 
7.2 Youth of FSA 

 
MOTION:  We, the youth in Large Circle, petition the Annual Meeting of First-St. Andrew’s United 
Church to name a Sunday this spring to thank our Sunday School teachers for their dedication 
and faithful service and cookies be served. 
MOVED:  By June McKay, seconded by Mary Vernon.  Motion carried. 

 
8.0  Benediction:  The Rev. Dr. Kate Crawford closed the meeting with a benediction. 

 
MOTION:  That the Annual Meeting be adjourned at 1:30 pm.  
MOVED:  By Paul Cooper.  Motion carried. 


